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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be
aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after
due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a
market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given that
there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for
the contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any
liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of
this report.

This report, for which the directors of Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited (the “Directors”)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on GEM (the “"GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to Jilin
Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited and its subsidiary (“the Group”). The directors, having
made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief: (1) the information contained
in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading; (2) there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement in this report misleading; and (3) all opinions expressed in this report
have bee arrived at after due and careful consideration and are founded on bases and assumptions that are fair and
reasonable.
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Chairman’s Statement

ERHRE

As the Chairman and on behalf of the Board of Directors (the
“Board"”), | am pleased to report the activities of Jilin Province
Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2009.

During the year under review, the Group has spent significant
efforts in further promoting its core products namely Hai Kun
Shen Xi capsule (§EEEZR%) and Compound Huonaoshu
capsule (1E 5 EMSETESE). As a result, the total turnover
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2009 was
RMB152,766,000, representing a significant increase of 20% as
compared with RMB127,124,000 for the previous year. Profit
for the year attributable to owners of the Company significantly
increased to RMB22,076,000 from RMB14,989,000 last year.
For the year ended 31 December 2009, basic earnings per share
increased to RMB3.94 cents from RMB2.68 cents last year.

The remarkable results in 2009 were the outcome of the
continued effort of all levels of the management in the past year.
In fact, the Board has already expressed its optimistic view for
2009's profitability in the 2008 annual report. As such, the Board
would like to share with the shareholders that with the following
competitive advantages, a strong foundation is laid for the
Company to have a blooming growth in the coming years.

First of all, with an emphasis on two leading products, namely
Hai-Kun Shen-Xi Kidney Capsule and Compound Living Brain
Capsule, the Board continued to put more efforts in academic
promotion and investment. We marked a move into multi-
channel expansion of product sales markets by directing our
main development towards various types of hospitals at all levels
while supplementing our business with OTC markets. During
the year, by taking advantage of the opportunities arising from
the national professional academic forum hosted by National
Society of Nephrology in Xi‘an and Dalian, we actively promoted
our products and invited experts from various regions to make
inspection visits to the Company. At the same time, the Company
dispatched personnel to organize more than 200 academic
seminars throughout a diversity of provinces (cities and districts),
thereby effectively invigorating a sales growth in the dominant
products.
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Secondly, we further strengthened the production management
and conscientiously implemented the GMP management
protocols, thus reaching a product qualification rate of 100%.

Thirdly, we accelerated the pace of technological transformation
and completed three reconstruction projects including
standardized warehouse, solid pharmaceutical preparation
workshop and cephalosporin materials workshop. The newly
constructed area was about 10,000 square meters, thereby
substantially boosting our productivity.

Fourthly, we have made better use of our technical center.
During the year, we completed the technological improvement
for 10 product varieties and the preparation process for 115
product varieties. The Company’s self-innovative capability was
incessantly enhanced. The Company, after being recognized as
a “National New and High-tech Enterprise” in July 2009, will be
entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15% for three consecutive
years starting from 1 January 2009.

Fifthly, during the year, the Company was awarded with honorary
titles of the “Provincial Collective Model” (“&R&%£EE") and the
“Top Hundred Private Enterprise in Jilin Province” ("“&#M&H
SRRZME") by Jilin Provincial Party Committee and Provincial
Government, and was renowned as the “Tax Champion” ("4R
Fiik7t") by Huinan County Party Committee and County
Government.

Looking forward, the Board believes that the Group is capable
of sustaining both its turnover and profit attributable to equity
holders in the coming future. Besides, continuous development
of the Company, such as investment in computerised production
system for new medicine and the establishment of Jilin Province
Medicinal Plants Trading Company Limited, reflect that the Board
has a well-organised long term plan for the expansion of the
Group.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my heartfelt
thanks to all levels of staff and the management for their efforts
and contributions in 2009 and my deep gratitude to our clients,
business partners and owners for their utmost support.

By order of the Board
Zhang Hong
Chairman

Jilin Province, the PRC
30 March 2010
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group’s turnover
increased to RMB152,766,000 from RMB127,124,000 while
the profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company
increased to RMB22,076,000 from RMB14,989,000. For the year
ended 31 December 2009, basic earnings per share increased to
RMB3.94 cents from RMB2.68 cents last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2009, the manufacturing and
sales of Hai Kun Shen Xi capsule (R &= B 2) continued to be
the Group's core source of revenue. The new medicine of Hai
Kun Shen Xi capsule has penetrated into the market, the sales of
which rose 43% as compared with 2008. The sales of Xueshuan
Xinmaining capsule (M#2/0: k%) has reached RMB5,682,000
for the year ended 31 December 2009, which was the third best
seller of the Group in 2009. Other products such as Dong Gui
Long Hui tablet (& gF8E& A1), Qian Lie Gui Huang tablet (%
+% ), Chang Long Li of Tou Bao Pi An (EEEFI(GEFAITR))
and Chang Long Hai of Tou Bao Pi An (K828 (SEICAL)) also
contributed more than RMB7,390,000 of sales in 2009, details of
which were elaborated under the Section’ Financial Review".

OPERATION REVIEW

Good Manufacturing Practice (GMP)

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Company has
been successful in renewal of a GMP standard certificate. The
Company has already obtained GMP certificates for the following:

1. Tablets (A7) — valid until 25 January 2011

2. Capsules (BBZH) — valid until 25 January 2011

3. Granules (FEHR7H]) — valid until 25 January 2011

4. Solution (external use) (YMNAE & H) — valid until 25 January
2011

5. Pill (Condensate) (= #a ) — valid until 25 January 2011

6. Sterile Bulk (Cefalotin sodium, Cefpiramide) (4 & B} 2
(SEFRIEEMY 6 - SEFIUCAR)) — valid until 13 May, 2010

7. Pills (Water Pills), Membrane (b7 (7k3h,) - BEH])-
until 6 February, 2010

valid
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8. Powder for injection (Cephalosporins) (SE7EE =181 &)
—valid until 23 August 2012

9. Tablets (Penicillins) (HZZ$8 5 Al) — valid until 1 February
2009

10.  Lyophilized powder for injection (= 3&17) — valid until 6
March 2011

11.  Small volume Parenteral Solution ({NAZ F5§%) — valid

until 6 March 2011

12.  Sterile Bulk (Yan Suan Tou Bao Jia Tong) (4 &k} &% (&8
FASEFIERAS ), Bulk (Yi Da La Feng) (BRI (ffoEh) —
valid until 30 December 2013

13. Bulk drug (Fucoidan, Extractum for fructus gardenlae)&E#k
BE(HRZERLES - e TIRENY) — valid unit: 14 September
2011

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The Research and Development (R&D) department is essential
for the future success of a pharmaceutical company. In the past,
our R&D department had successfully developed the medicine,
Compound Huonaoshu capsule, which had generated huge profit
to the Company and finally led to the listing of the Company in
Hong Kong. In the year of 2003, our R&D department completed
the development of Hai Kun Shen Xi capsule, which now became
the first largest revenue generator and its revenue increased 43%
as compared with last year. Yi Da La Feng Bulk has obtained
the production approval and Tou Bao Bulk has commenced
commercial production for the year ended 31 December 2009.

In addition to our internal R&D resources, the Group also embarks
on joint efforts with other reputable R&D companies to develop
new potential pharmaceutical products. As at 31 December 2009,
the major products currently under research and development
were as follows:

Medicine

EMER

Type
=l

Zhi Zi Xi Hong Ha Gan for injection
(5T PALTEH) HgE—4E
Yan Suan Tou Bao Bi Wo
(EEPL SR AT) @==r-pup
Yan Suan Tou Bao Bi Wo for injection
(51 A LR R AS) {2 %R
Li Dan Qing Wan
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Chinese Medicine Class 2

Chemical Medicine Class 4

Chemical Medicine Class 4

Chinese Medicine Class 3
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PRODUCTION FACILITIES

During the year 2009, the Board has reviewed all production
facilities and has redesigned the assembly lines and reallocated
the plant and machinery so as to improve the effectiveness
and efficiency of the production lines. In addition, the Group
has made important process improvements and technological
transformation on the production facilities, and completed three
reconstruction projects including standardized warehouse, solid
pharmaceutical preparation workshop and cephalosporin materials
workshop. The newly constructed area was about 10,000 square
meters, thereby substantially boosting our productivity.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group's recorded
a revenue amounted to approximately RMB152,766,000
(2008: RMB127,124,000), a growth of approximately 20% as
compared with the previous year. The audited profit for the
year attributable to owners of the Company was approximately
RMB22,076,000 representing an increase of 67% as compared
with RMB14,989,000 in last year. The basic earnings per share
was RMB3.94 cents (2008: RMB2.68 cents), an increase of
RMB1.26 cents over the last year.

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group reported
a turnover of approximately RMB152,766,000, representing an
increase of approximately RMB25,642,000 or 20% as compared
with the same period last year. The significant increase in turnover
was mainly due to the increase in the revenue of our core
revenue generator namely Hai Kun Shen Xi capsule (R B=E
#¢). The new medicine of Hai Kun Shen Xi capsule has penetrated
into the market, the sales of which rose 43% as compared with
2008. The sales of Xueshuan Xinmaining capsule amounted to
approximately RMB5,682,000 for the year ended 31 December
2009.

Other products, such as Qianlie Guihuang tablet (Fi%liE= ),
Dang Gui Long Hui tablet, (& §55g& %) Chang Long Li of Tou Bao
Pi An (E##F|(38780Cf%)) and Chang Long Hai of Tou Bao Pi An
(Ee/5 (SEFITAZ)) also contributed more than RMB7,390,000 in
sales in 2009.
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The Board is pleased with the financial performance for 2009. It
believes that the remarkable growth in profitability is attributed to
the following reasons.

Firstly, sales volume of Hai-Kun Shen-Xi Kidney Capsule, the
Group's leading products, relatively showcased a robust growth.
The Board believes that revenue generated from Hai-Kun Shen-
Xi Kidney Capsule is expected to continue to grow by over 30%
commencing from this year.

Secondly, the Group continued to increase investment in
academic promotion and make greater intensity of efforts to
distribute products to medical institutions. Accordingly, our sales
network was further expanded.

For instance, the Group took part in the Annual Meeting of the
National Society of Nephrology in Xi'an and Dalian, as well as
some regional academic conferences. The Company also sent
professionals to hold seminars throughout the country and
received notable success. Through academic promotion activities,
the Group has not only upgraded its corporate image, but has also
tapped business opportunities and explored business networks. A
host of new clients from medical institutions in different regions
are sought by us through such meetings.

Thirdly, in line with its needs, the Group continued to implement
the recruitment plan of temporary sales staff, in order to assist
regional sales staff in expanding their sales network, and in
hence, to capture and secure a larger share in hospital clinical
sales markets.

The gross profit margin for the year ended 31 December
2009 was approximately 74%, representing a 5% increase as
compared with that of 69% for the year ended 31 December
2008.
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For the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group recorded other
income and gains of approximately RMB7,059,000 as compared
with RMB937,000 for the year ended 31 December 2008.

Distribution and selling costs increased to approximately
RMB77,684,000 for the year ended 31 December 2009 from
approximately RMB47,711,000 last year. These expenses
accounted for 51% of turnover in 2009, which represented a
13% increase from 38% as compared with the corresponding
period last year. The increase in sales and distribution expenses
of approximately RMB29,973,000 was mainly due to the growth
in staff remuneration as a result of the recruitment of temporary
sales persons. The Board believes that the distribution and selling
costs which represented 51% of the turnover was acceptable for
a pharmaceutical manufacturing company.

For the year ended 31 December 2009, administrative expenses
increased to approximately RMB20,518,000 from approximately
RMB15,524,000 last year.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group has maintained a sound financial position during this
year. As at 31 December 2009, cash and bank balances of the
Group amounted to RMB43,490,000 (2008: RMB48,831,000)
with long-term borrowings of RMB6,990,000 (2008:
RMB6,990,000) which were interest bearing at commercial rates
and unsecured. As at 31 December 2009, the Group had total
assets of RMB335,793,000 (2008: RMB318,045,000) which
were financed by current liabilities of RMB71,322,000 (2008:
RMB72,659,000), long term borrowings of RMB6,990,000 (2008:
RMB6,990,000), deferred tax liabilities of RMB1,499,000 (2008:
RMB4,531,000) and shareholders’ equity of RMB255,982,000
(2008: RMB233,865,000).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERENWR D

GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2009, the Group had a net cash and cash
equivalents of RMB43,490,000. As at 31 December 2009, the
ratio of the total liabilities to the total assets of the Group was
24% (2008: 26%) which was calculated by dividing the Group's
total liabilities of RMB79,811,000 (2008: RMB84,180,000) by the
Group's total equity and liabilities of RMB335,793,000 (2008:
RMB318,045,000). The Group's gearing ratio which derived from
the total borrowings to total assets was 2% (2008: 2%).

EMPLOYEES

The Group has a total of 286 full-time employees and has
employed some temporary sales persons. For the year ended
31 December 2009, the total remuneration of employees,
including directors’ remuneration amounted to approximately
RMB38,018,000 (2008: approximately RMB30,715,000).

Remuneration is determined by reference to market conditions
and the performance, qualifications and experience of individual
employee. Discretionary bonuses based on individual performance
will be paid to employees as recognition of and reward for their
contribution. Other benefits include contributions to retirement
scheme and medical scheme.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

ESNGREEEGE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Zhang Hong

Aged 55, male, is the Chairman, general manager and secretary
of the Party committee. He holds a bachelor degree and is a
senior economist. His previous positions are as follows: He was a
teacher and the secretary of Youth League Committee of Huinan
No. 4 Middle School from September 1978 to October 1983;
he worked in county and town governments from November
1983 to September 1989, during which he held the position of
deputy town head; he has been the Chairman, general manager
and secretary of the Party committee of Jilin Province Huinan
Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited since October 1989.

Zhang Xiao Guang

Aged 46, male, is an executive director and deputy general
manager. He holds a bachelor degree and is a senior economist.
He held the positions of the secretary of Youth League
Committee of Chaoyang town engineer affairs equipment factory
of Shenyang railway bureau from July 1983 to September 1989;
deputy director of foreign trade bureau of Huinan County from
October 1989 to November 1990; executive director and deputy
general manager of the Company since December 1990.

Liang Fu Xiang

Aged 61, male, holds a bachelor degree and is an assistant
lecturer and senior economist. His previous positions are as
follows: he was the director of academic affairs of Jinlin Province
Hailong Normal School from August 1976 to March 1982; the
Section Chief and Vice Minister of the Publicity Department
and Organization Department of the Municipal Committee in
Meihekou City, Jilin Province from September 1982 to December
1990; Section Chief of the Organization Department of Municipal
Committee in Tonghua City, Jilin Province from January 1991 to
August 1992; a Standing Committee Member and the Section
Chief of the Organization Department in Huinan County from
September 1992 to August 1995; the Standing Deputy Chief
Executive and a Standing Committee Member of Huinan County
from September 1995 to August 1997; a Standing Committee
Member, Deputy Secretary and Consultant in Huinan County
from September 1997 to November 2001; the district manager of
Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company from December 2001
to May 2007; and commenced to perform his duties of executive
director of the Company since 9 August 2007.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

ESNGREEEGE

Tian Xin Guo

Aged 53, male, is an executive director and deputy secretary of
the Party committee. He holds a master degree and is a senior
economist. He acted as the Secretary of the Ministry of Public
Transportation and the Economics and Trading Committee in
Huinan County from December 1979 to September 1984; studied
in the Jilin Province Radio and Television University for associate
degree from October 1984 to September 1986; from October
1986 to November 1986, has was general officer of Huinan
County government office; from December 1986 to March 1990,
the Chief of the Transportation Management Office in Huinan
County and the Secretary of the Party Branch; from April 1990
to September 1995, the Deputy Director of the Transportation
Bureau in Huinan County; from October 1995 to September 1999,
the Director of the State-owned Assets Management Bureau;
from October 1999 to October 2001, the Director of the Planning
Bureau in Huinan County; from November 2001 to May 2007,
the district manager, deputy secretary of the Party committee
and secretary of discipline committee of Huinan Changlong Bio-
pharmacy Company and on 9 August 2007, he commenced to
perform his duties of executive director and district manager,
deputy secretary of the Party committee and secretary of
discipline committee of the Company.

Chen Qi Ming

Aged 52, male, is an executive director and a senior economist
with a bachelor degree. From October 1978 to July 1982, he
studied in Jilin Agriculture University; from August 1982 to
October 1989, he worked in Economics and Trading Committee
and Heavy Industries Bureau in Huinan County; from November
1989 to October 1995, he worked in Agricultural Machinery
Bureau and Agricultural Bureau of the county; from November
1995 to April 2002, acted as director of Technology Bureau; from
May 2002 to August 2007, worked as district manager of Huinan
Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company; commenced to perform his
duties of executive director and district manager of the Company
on 9 August 2007.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

ESNGREEEGE

Wu Guo Wen

Aged 45, male, is an executive director and chief engineer. He
holds a master degree and is a Pharmacist-in-charge and senior
engineer. From July 1984 to August 1986, he studied in Shanxi
Province Herbal School; from September 1986 to August 1988,
he acted as director of quality inspection department of herbal
medicine company in Huinan County; from September 1988 to
August 1991, he studied in Shanghai Medicine University; from
September 1991 to January 1993, he acted as district manager
of Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company; from February 1993 to
May 1996, he pursued master degree in Jilin University; from
June 1996 to August 2007, he acted as chief engineer of Huinan
Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company and commenced to perform
his duties of executive director and chief engineer on 9 August
2007.

Zhao Bao Gang

Aged 43, male, is an executive director and chief finance officer.
He holds an associate degree and is a certified accountant,
certified estimator and senior economist. From July 1987 to July
1990, he studied in Jilin Finance and Tax Training School; from
August 1990 to May 1995, he acted as director of Finance Bureau
of Huinan County; from August 1996 to December 2006, he held
the position of director and equipment director of Jilin Province
Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited and was
appointed as director and chief finance officer of the Company in
March 2007.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Shen Yu Xiang

Aged 59, male, is an independent non-executive director. From
April 1984 to October 1995, he acted as deputy director of
Finance Bureau of Huinan County; from November 1995 to
October 1998, he worked as dean of Finance and Trade Office
of Huinan County; from November 1998 to December 2000,
he acted as director of Audit Bureau of Huinan County and was
appointed as independent director of the Company since 2001.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

ESNGREEEGE

Xue Chang Qing

Aged 48, male, is an independent non-executive director with
a bachelor degree and is a senior auditor, international certified
internal auditor, certified accountant, certified assets estimator
and certified tax agent. From September 1978 to September
1981, he studied in Changchun Machinery Industrial School
majoring in machinery manufacture; from September 1981 to
May 1988, he acted as accountant of Changchun Printing and
Dyeing Factory; from May 1988 to January 2006, he worked
as accountant, internal auditor, senior auditor and deputy dean
of finance office of Changchun Institute of Applied Chemistry
Chinese Academy of Sciences; since January 2006, he has acted
as dean of assessment department of Jilin Jinshi Certified Public
Accountants Company Limited. He commenced to perform his
duties of independent director of the Company on 9 August 2007.

Yan Li Jin

Aged 55, male, is an independent non-executive director and
holds a master degree. From March 1977 and January 1980,
he studied in Politics and History Department of Si Ping Normal
University; from July 1994 to July 1997, he studied in History
Department of Northeast Normal University; from January 1998
to March 2000, pursued master degree in Northeast Normal
University; from January 1980 to July 1993, he worked as teacher
and dean of students of Huinan No.1 Middle School; from
August 1993 to January 1997, he acted as principal of Huinan
No.1 Middle School and commenced to perform his duties of
independent director of the Company on 9 August 2007.

SUPERVISORS

Zhang Jing Zhou

Aged 61, male, he joined Changlong Bio-pharmacy in March 1995.
He has acted as the Chairman of labour union and supervisory
committee of the Company since 1996.

Wu Wei Men

Aged 40, male, graduated from Dandong Textile Training School
with associated degree in industrial accounting in 1991. From
1991 to 2004, he worked as finance director of hardware factory
of Huinan County. He joined Changlong Bio-pharmacy in 2004 and
has acted as supervisor of the Company since 9 August 2007.

Li Bao Hai

Aged 53, male, he joined Changlong Bio-pharmacy in July 1990.
He worked as an electrician and dean of electricity distribution
office. He has acted as the Supervisor of the Company since
1996.
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OTHER SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mok Sai Cheong Mark

Aged 30, male, is the qualified accountant and company secretary.
He holds a Bachelor's degree in commerce. He is a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He has over 7
years of experience in auditing and accounting.

Zhang Yan Jun

Aged 44, male, holds an associate degree and is the secretary of
the board of Directors and senior economist. From August 1985
to October 1995, he worked as director of finance department
of the Second Light Industrial Bureau of Huinan County; from
November 1995 to October 1996, director of production
department of economy and trade committee of Huinan County;
from November 1996 to July 2007, deputy secretary of the Party
committee of Huinan Taitai Bio-pharmacy Company Limited and
the chairman of Supervisory Committee. He has acted as dean of
security department of Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company
Limited since August 2007 and secretary of the board of directors
since November 2008.

Yang Ze Shu

Aged 42, male, graduated from Yanbian Medical College in 1992
with a bachelor degree. He is Chief Quality Officer and chief
pharmacist and senior engineer. From 1992 to 1999, he acted as
dean of Pharmaceutical office of Institute for Drug Control. He has
worked as Chief Quality Officer of the Company since 2000.
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Report of the Directors

EEOHRES

The Directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2009.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The Company was established as a state-owned enterprise in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") in 1989. On 29 December
1995, under the relevant provisions of the PRC Company Law,
the Company was re-organised from a state-owned enterprise to
a limited liability company. On 16 August 1996, with the approval
of the Economic Restructuring Commission of Jilin Province,
the Company was further converted into a joint stock limited
company. On 20 April 1999, the Company made a bonus issue
from capitalisation of retained profits at the proportion of one
bonus share for every two existing shares.

The Company’s H shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market (“GEM") of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on 24 May 2001.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and
distribution of biochemical medicines in the PRC under the brand
names of Changlong and Shendi. There were no changes in the
nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

The Group has only one business segment which is the
manufacture and distribution of biochemical medicines in the
PRC. In 2009, turnover of the Group was generated entirely
from sales in the PRC and all identifiable assets of the Group
are located in the PRC. Accordingly, no business or geographical
segmental analysis is prepared for the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2009 and
the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group at that date
are set out in the financial statements on pages 38 to 102.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend.
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Report of the Directors

EEOHRES

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following is a summary of the published results and the assets
and liabilities of the Group prepared on the basis set out in the
notes below. This summary is not part of the audited financial
statements.

MBERHE

AT AREBEEABEENREEREEZH
Z - DERTXMEAREERS  AHETEL
BRI BREZ—H5 -

Results ES
2009 2008
—EFAF —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T ARETTT
Turnover EEERE 152,766 127,124
Profit before income tax TR A A 21,998 25,250
Income tax credit/(expense) FRIET A () 78 (10,261)
Profit for the year from ordinary activities NEERERBEAEGRE
attributable to owners of the Company ETEEF 22,076 14,989
Assets and liabilities EEREE
2009 2008
—EFThF —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREET T ARETTT
Total assets BEE 335,793 318,045
Total liabilities FEY=FE (79,811) (84,180)
Net assets FEE 255,982 233,865

BEARER BIOLOGICAL ASSETS, PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INTANGIBLE
ASSETS

Details of movements in bearer biological assets, property,
plant and equipment, and intangible assets of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in Notes 16, 17 and 21 to
the financial statements respectively.
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EEGHRES

MATERIAL INVESTMENTS, ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED
COMPANIES

The Group made no material acquisitions or disposals of
subsidiaries and affiliated companies during the year ended 31
December 2009. As at 31 December 2009, the Group had no
future plans for material investments of subsidiaries and affiliated
companies.

SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company are set out in Note
20 to the financial statements.

BORROWINGS
Particulars of borrowings of the Group and the Company are set
out in Note 29 to the financial statements.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The operations of the Group were financed mainly by
shareholders’ equity. The Group will continue to adopt its treasury
policy of placing the Group’s cash and cash equivalents in interest
bearing deposits, and to fund operations with internal resources.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in Note 31 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and in Note 32 to the financial
statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2009, the reserves of the Company available
for cash distribution or distribution in specie was amounted to
approximately RMB131,972,000 (2008: RMB112,819,000).
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group sold about 18% of its goods to its five
largest customers (2008: 20%) and sales to the largest customer
included therein accounted for 7% (2008: 6%) of the Group's total
sales.

In the year under review, the Group’s purchases from the five
largest suppliers accounted for about 35% (2008: 14%) of the
Group's total purchases and purchases from the largest suppliers
therein accounted for 8% (2008: 5%) of the Group's total
purchases.

None of the directors of the Company or any shareholders who,
to the best knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the
Company's issued share capital had any beneficial interest in the
Group's five largest customers and five largest suppliers noted
above.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

For the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008, the Group
mainly generated revenue and incurred costs in Hong Kong
dollars and Renminbi. The directors consider the impact on
foreign exchange exposure of the Group is minimal. Accordingly
the Group did not employ any financial instruments for hedging
purposes.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Details of the capital commitments of the Group and the
Company as at 31 December 2009 are set out in Note 33 to the
financial statements.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2009 and 2008, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.
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DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The Directors and Supervisors of the Company during the year
and up to the date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Hong (Chairman)
Mr. Zhang Xiao Guang

Mr. Liang Fu Xiang

Mr. Tian Xin Guo

Mr. Chen Qi Ming

Mr. Wu Guo Wen

Mr. Zhao Bao Gang

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Shen Yu Xiang

Mr. Xue Chang Qing

Mr. Yan Li Jin

Supervisors

Mr. Zhang Jing Zhou
Mr. Wu Wei Men
Mr. Li Bao Hai

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out in the section
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” of
the annual report.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

Details of the Directors’ and Supervisors’ emoluments and those
of the five highest paid individuals in the Group are set out in Note
14 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS OR LETTERS OF APPOINTMENT

Each of the Directors and Supervisors (including the Independent
Non-Executive Directors and the Supervisors) has entered into a
service contract or letter of appointment with the Company for a
term of three years. None of the Directors or the Supervisors had
entered into any service contract or letter of appointment with
the Company which is not terminable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

No directors had a significant beneficial interest, either directly
or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of
the Group to which the Company or its subsidiaries was a party
during the year.

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES

At 31 December 2009, the interests and short positions of the
Directors, supervisors and chief executives of the Company in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") as recorded in
the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange

ESRESRENhzERE

EENFABEREARRHEMBATHER—7
BHAEENEBEEENEMNANTHREEE
HEENEAE S ER °

BE - HEIEE LhmES

FA - AARIKEMBARMEREE - BEE
EIAREER LHES ©

EEREERRMDER

RZZTENF+ZA=+—H ARAES &
ERFETBABRARN G REFREEEE(E
ERBSRBEGEL(FBHERBEEG ) EXV
MG - ARG REHFTHEEIREF %&%
E1&PIE35215 « BHAZLIGFTE A #E=S
KA FIRBE R AR AR E ﬁimﬁwﬂﬁ%
RETREN)FE 4615 EE67IKFTIEEFEEER

pursuant to the minimum standards of dealing by directors as  {KIZ¥EMAME AN QD 7 KB TRy KA R N
referred to in Rule 5.46 to 5.67 of the Rules Governing the Listing T :
of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) were as follows:
Long positions in shares RBROHNRE
Percentage of
Percentage of total registered
Type of Number of Domestic Share Capital
Director Interests Capacity Domestic Shares Shares {HAT AR
Ex =R 27 RERBE ERERB DL MBS
Zhang Hong Personal Beneficial owner 101,937,000 26.29 18.19
BEIN fELA EmEAA
Zhang Xiao Guang  Personal Beneficial owner 42,315,000 10.91 7.55
SREES ELA A A
Wu Guo Wen Personal Beneficial owner 900,000 0.232 0.161
REIX fEA BEmEEA
Chen Qi Ming Personal Beneficial owner 300,000 0.077 0.054
B iR AR ELA A A
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2009, none of the
Directors, supervisors and chief executives of the Company has
any interests and short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the minimum standards of dealing by directors as
referred to in Rule 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Saved as disclosed under the headings “Directors’ and
supervisors’ interests in shares” above, at no time during the
year were there any rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted
to any director, supervisor and chief executive or their respective
spouses or children under 18 years of age, or were any such
rights exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the directors, supervisors and chief executives to acquire
such rights in any other body corporate.

INTERESTS DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE SFO
AND SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2009, the following persons (other than the
Directors, supervisors and chief executives of the Company) had
interests and short positions in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 336 of the SFO.

B EXFEEEIN  RCTEZNFT _A=+—
B ARAESE BEENTIETBRASHRERAE
RAREAEAREER ER R E 5 LB RIS
XVED) Bt ~ AR REFTHAREE S
K BB ARG 236215 - ZBFI ARX &AL E 2 H
BELRR - FARBRIZER EMRAES4616E
b.67IRFMEESEEREFREMAMEARR R
B FTERE R BURA ©

EEBARMDHER

BREXEFEESERRODNES | —BRAKES
S BEFR  BEERIZTBRAERREZEN
BT N\BRAT FARBEERSITEEMES
BAXRRRMHEFMERAN @ 2 - MA
DA HERARREAFME R RERZE
M FEE BEERIBTHRABRARNMEM
HAEBEBAZ SRR -

REFFZRPERGIATRENERR
FERR
RIBBAFT-AZ+—8  RRADARE

TALT(RARAESE EEREBTBRABRKRIN)
WA B RABRER P R A s KR

Long positions in shares RERAHRE
Percentage of
Number of Percentage total registered
Capacity/Nature Domestic of Domestic Share Capital
Name of shareholder of Interest Shares Shares EF BRI
BREHE 51, EatE RERHEE HRERBIH HEZHE
Huinan County SAB (Note) Beneficial owner 81,975,000 21.14 14.63

BREZRIEEBRETARNE) EBEZBEA

Note:  Apart from the equity interest in the Company, Huinan County SAB  A72 - BRAMAARBINIRAERIN - BEZVRKREAR

does not have any direct or indirect interest in the Company, including
representatives in the Board of Directors.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2009, the Directors
were not aware of any other person (other than the Directors,
Supervisors and Chief Executives of the Company) who had
interests and short positions in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group and
the Company were entered into or were in existence during the
year.

COMPETING INTEREST

None of the Directors, the management shareholders, the
significant shareholders or the substantial shareholders (as
defined in the GEM Listing Rules) of the Company had any
interest in a business, which competes or may compete with the
business of the Group.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHT

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the article
of association of the Company or the laws of the PRC, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company was established, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had no related party transactions,
which also constituted connected transactions under the GEM
Listing Rules.

STAFF RETIREMENT SCHEME

Details of the staff retirement scheme of the Group and the
employer’s staff retirement costs charged to the profit and
loss account for the year are set out in note 15 to the financial
statements.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company set up an Audit Committee on 24 May 2001 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the requirements
as set out in Rules 5.28 and 5.29 of the GEM Listing Rules. The
primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review and provide
supervision over the financial reporting procedures and internal
control system of the Group.

The committee has reviewed with the management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed internal controls and financial reporting matters,
including a review of the audited results of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2009.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from
the published audited financial statements and reclassified as
appropriate, is set out on page 103 of the annual report. This
summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and to the best of the directors’ knowledge, as at the date of this
annual report, there was a sufficient prescribed public float of the
issued shares of the Company under the GEM Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on the principle corporate governance practices adopted
by the Company is set out on pages 27 to 34 of the annual report.

AUDITORS

Messrs. BDO Limited resigned as auditors of the Company and
its subsidiaries and Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited
were appointed in their place. A resolution will be submitted
to Annual General Meeting of the company to re-appoint the
auditors, Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited.

By order of the Board

Zhang Hong
Chairman

Jilin Province, the PRC
30 March 2010
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

In the opinion of the Board, the Company has complied with
all the code provisions as set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practice (the “Code"”) contained in Appendix 15 to
the GEM Listing Rules throughout the financial year ended 31
December 2009 subject to the deviations disclosed hereof.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by directors on terms no less than the required
standard of dealings as set out in rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules. The Company has also made specific enquiry of all
Directors and the Company was not aware of any non-compliance
with the required standard of dealings and its code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by Directors throughout the year
ended 31 December 2009.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD MEETINGS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Hong (Chairman)
Mr. Zhang Xiao Guang

Mr. Liang Fu Xiang

Mr. Tian Xin Guo

Mr. Chen Qi Ming

Mr. Wu Guo Wen

Mr. Zhao Bao Gang

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Shen Yu Xiang

Mr. Xue Chang Qing

Mr. Yan Li Jin

As at the date of this report, the Board comprised ten Directors,
seven of whom are Executive Directors, three of whom are
INEDs of the Company. Details of backgrounds and qualifications
of each Director are set out on the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual
report.
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The Board is responsible for corporate strategy, annual and
interim results, succession planning, risk management, major
acquisitions, disposals and capital transactions, and other
significant operational and financial matters. Major corporate
matters that are specifically delegated by the Board of Directors
to the management include the preparation of annual and
interim accounts for Board approval before public reporting,
execution of business strategies, implementation of adequate
systems of internal controls and risk management procedures,
and compliance with relevant statutory requirements and rules
and regulations. Executive Directors are responsible for running
the Group and executing the strategies adopted by the Board.
The INEDs serve the relevant function of bringing independent
judgement on the development, performance and risk
management of the Group through their contributions in board
meeting.

All Directors have given sufficient time and attention to the affairs
of the Group. Each executive Director has sufficient experience
to hold the position so as to carry out his duties effectively and
efficiently.

The Board considers that each INED of the Company is
independent in character and judgement. The Company
has received from each INED a written confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The Board meets at least four times each year at approximately
quarterly intervals to discuss the Group's business development,
operation and financial performance. Board papers are circulated
not less than 7 days before the Board meetings to enable the
Directors to make informed decisions on matters to be raised at
the board meetings. Minutes of board meetings are kept be the
Company Secretary and are open for inspection at any reasonable
time on reasonable notice by any Director.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, there is no financial,
business and family relationship among the members of the
Board.
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Board meetings
During the year, four regular board meetings were held. Details of
the attendance of the Directors are as follows:—

Directors =

Executive Directors WITES

Mr. Zhang Hong (Chairman) sRah T E(EE)
Mr. Zhang Xiao Guang SREBE SN A

Mr. Liang Fu Xiang RrErESRAE

Mr. Tian Xin Guo TR e A4

Mr. Chen Qi Ming PRESRASCAE

Mr. Wu Guo Wen REIX S HE

Mr. Zhao Bao Gang HEE WIS
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUIERITES
Mr. Shen Yu Xiang TEERESRE

Mr. Xue Chang Qing BRI E

Mr. Yan Li Jin il it

Apart from the above regular board meetings of the years, the
Board of Directors will meet on other occasions when a board-
level decision on a particular matter is required. The Directors
will receive details of agenda items for decision and minutes of
committee meetings in advance of each board meeting.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under the code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Mr. Zhang Hong assumes the role of both
the chairman and the chief executive officer of the Company. The
Board is of the view that this has not compromised accountability
and independent decision making for the following reasons:

- the Audit Committee composes exclusively of
Independent Non-executive Directors;

- the Independent Directors have free and direct access
to the Company’'s external auditors and independent
professional advice when considered necessary.
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Mr. Zhang Hong, the chairman, is a substantial shareholder of
the Company and has considerable industry experience. He is
motivated to contribute to the growth and profitability of the
Group. The Board is of the view that it is in the best interests of
the Group to have an executive chairman so that the Board can
have the benefit of a chairman who is knowledgeable about the
business of the Group and is most capable to guide discussions
and brief the Board in a timely manner on pertinent issues and
developments to facilitate open dialogue between the Board and
the management.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company appointed INEDs who have appropriate and
sufficient experience and qualification to carry out their duties so as
to protect the interests of shareholders. Mr. Shen Yu Xiang, Mr.
Xue Chang Qing and Mr. Yan Li Jin are the INEDs.

All INEDs are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with
the articles of association of the Company. All the existing INEDs
are appointed for an initial term of three years and the term of
office shall continue after the expiration of the initial term until at
least 1 month’s prior written notice is given by either party or the
Company to terminate the same.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

According to the Code, the Company has set up a Remuneration
Committee on 29 September 2005. As at the date of this report,
the chairman of the committee is Mr. Shen Yu Xiang, an INED,
and other members include Mr. Xue Chang Qing, and Mr. Zhang
Hong, the majority being INEDs. The remuneration committee
schedules meet at least once a year and the quorum necessary
for the transaction of business is two.

The role and function of the Remuneration Committee included
the determination of the specific remuneration packages of all
executive Directors, including benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments, including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment,
and make recommendations to the board of the remuneration
of non-executive Directors. The remuneration committee should
consider factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors,
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and desirability of
performance-based remuneration.
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2009, the
Remuneration Committee held two meeting. The individual
attendance records of each member are as follows:

Members [34=1

Mr. Shen Yu Xiang (Chairman) LR E(EE)
Mr. Xue Chang Qing BRERE

Mr. Zhang Hong b

For the year ended 31 December 2009, the Remuneration
Committee reviewed matters relating to remuneration for the
Directors and members of senior management, and discussed
the remuneration policy of the Group.

The remuneration committee of the Company has considered
and reviewed the existing terms of employment contracts of
the Executive Directors and appointment letters of the INEDs.
The Remuneration Committee of the Company considers that
the existing terms of employment contracts of the Executive
Directors and appointment letters of the INEDs are fair and
reasonable.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Nomination Committee
according to the relevant provisions of the GEM Listing Rules with
written terms of reference. Its primary responsibilities include
reviewing and supervising the framework, number of members
and composition of the Board and making proposals to the Board
in respect of any changes and identifying and nominating suitable
persons for appointment of Director.

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee
comprises of one Executive Director, Mr. Zhang Xiao Guang and
two INEDs, Mr. Xue Chang Qing and Mr. Shen Yu Xiang, which is
in compliance with the requirement of the GEM Listing Rules that
INEDs should form the majority of the Nomination Committee.
Mr. Shen Yu Xiang is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

Nomination procedures include identification and acknowledgement
of qualified individuals by the Nomination Committee, and review
and approval of such nominations by the Board. The Nomination
Committee will evaluate potential candidates considering factors
such as professional expertise, relevant experience, personal
ethics and integrity.
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2009, the Nomination
Committee held three meetings. During the meeting, the
Nomination Committee has reviewed and discussed the
framework, number of members and composition of the Board.
Also, the Nomination Committee has identified and made
proposals in respect of the outstanding appointment of Executive
Directors and INEDs. The individual attendance records of each
member are as follows:

Members [24=

Mr. Shen Yu Xiang (Chairman) IEERELRE (L)
Mr. Xue Chang Qing BRI E

Mr. Zhang Xiao Guang SRR ST

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited was the auditor of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2009. Other than
annual auditing services, Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA
Limited did not provide non-auditing services to the Company or
any of the Group's companies during the year.

Auditors’ remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2009 is
set out in Note 9 to the financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in 2001 and currently
comprises three members, Mr. Shen Yu Xiang, Mr. Xue Chang
Qing and Mr. Yan Li Jin. All of them are INEDs. The chairman of
the Audit Committee is Mr. Shen Yu Xiang. The Board considers
that each Audit Committee has broad commercial experience and
there is a suitable mix of expertise in business, legal, accounting
and financial management in the Audit Committee.

None of the members of the Audit Committee has any personal
financial interests, conflicts of interests arising from cross-
directorships or day-to-day involvement in the running of the
business. The Audit Committee oversees the financial reporting
process and the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
system of internal control. During the year, the Audit Committee
carried out their own independent review of the interim and
annual financial statements and financial reports and statements
included in circulars of the company published during the
year. And with the assistance of the internal audit department,
which reports directly to the committee, the Audit Committee
completed its review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company'’s systems of internal control and reported its findings
and recommendations to the Board.
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Corporate Governance Report
CEEARRE

The Audit Committee held 4 meetings during the year under
review. Details of the attendance of the audit committee
meetings are as follows:

Members Meetings RE

Mr. Shen Yu Xiang LERESE
Mr. Xue Chang Qing BERERE
Mr. Yan Li Jin kot

The Group's unaudited quarterly and interim results and annual
audited results during the year ended 31 December 2009 have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee, which was of the opinion
that the preparation of such results complied with the applicable
accounting standards and requirements and that adequate
disclosure have been.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors have the responsibilities for the preparation of
the financial statements of the Group and shall ensure that
the financial statements are in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. The Directors
also ensure the timely publication of the financial statements of
the Group.

The statements of the external auditors of the Company,
Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited, about its reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set
out in the Independent Auditor's Report on pages 36 and 37 of
this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Company has conducted review of its system of internal
control periodically to ensure the effective and adequate internal
control system. The Company convened meeting periodically
to discuss financial , operational and risk management control.
The Directors are of the view that the existing system of internal
control is effective and adequate to the Group.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company disclosed all necessary information to the
shareholders in compliance with GEM Listing Rules. Extensive
information about the company’s activities is provided in
the Annual Report and the Interim Report which are sent
to shareholders. There is regular dialogue with institutional
investors. Enquiries from individuals on matters relating to their
shareholdings and the business of the company are welcomed
and are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.

All shareholders have 45 days’ notice of the Annual General
Meeting at which all directors and Committee chairs are available
for questions. All shareholders are encouraged to attend the
Annual General Meeting.

LOOKING FORWARD

The Group will keep on reviewing its corporate governance
standards on a timely basis and the Board endeavors to take
necessary actions to ensure compliance with the required
practices and standards including the provisions of the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices introduced by the Stock
Exchange.
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Report of the Supervisory Committee

ESgWREE

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF JILIN PROVINCE HUINAN
CHANGLONG BIO-PHARMACY COMPANY LIMITED

(a joint stock limited company incorporated in the People’s
Republic of China with limited liabilities)

The Supervisory Committee of the Company, in accordance
with the Company Law of the PRC, requirements of the relevant
laws and regulations of Hong Kong and articles of association of
the Company (the “relevant rules and regulations”), exercised
conscientiously its authority, safeguarded the interests of the
shareholders of the Company and the Company, during the year
ended 31 December 2009 followed the principle of honesty and
trustworthiness and worked cautiously and diligently.

During the year, we provided reasonable suggestions and advice
on the operations and development plans to the Directors and
strictly and effectively monitored whether the policies of the
Company had conformed with the relevant rules and regulations
or safeguarded the interests of the shareholders of the Company.

After investigation, we consider that the audited financial
statements of the Company truly and sufficiently reflect the
operating results and asset position of the Company. We
also consider that the Report of the Directors and the profit
distribution proposal meet the relevant rules and regulations. We
have attended the meeting of the Board. We are of the opinion
that the meeting was convened in accordance with the relevant
rules and regulations. We consider that the members of the
Board, the general manager and other senior management of the
Company have strictly complied with the principle of honesty and
trustworthiness, worked diligently and sincerely acted in the best
interests of the Company. None of the Directors, general manager
nor other senior management of the company have abused their
powers, caused damage to the interests of the Company and
infringed upon the interests of the Company end its staff, nor
have they violated the relevant rules and regulations.

We are satisfied with the various accomplishments and the
cost-effectiveness of the Company. We are confident that the
Company will have a good prospect of future development.

By order of the Supervisory Committee
Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited

Zhang Jing Zhou
Chairman

Jilin Province, the PRC
30 March 2010
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Independent Auditors’ Report
BYZBEHRES

'{ REANDA LAU & AU YEUNG

NZEZE&S (F8) SHAEBMARLF

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF JILIN PROVINCE HUINAN
CHANGLONG BIO-PHARMACY COMPANY
LIMITED

(a joint stock limited company incorporated in the People’s
Republic of China with limited liabilities)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Jilin
Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”)
set out on pages 38 to 102, which comprise the consolidated
and Company balance sheet as at 31 December 2009, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to
the preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

36 Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
Annual Report 2009

21/F, Tai Yau Building, EBEF
181 Johnston Road, HEHEE1815]
Wanchai, Hong Kong RERE211E

AEMEEBERRELELCEXZRD
BRRABINCRR2BLZHME S
=

(RPFEARRFIE MK 2R 1 ERAA])

AZBE (AT EEIERM]) EEZHNFEIIBE
102EEMEERmRELCEERNBRAR(E
RE D EEMBAR (SR ERE ] MEREME
HE - HPEER-_ZZAF T _A=+—HBH
RAMPRBEERABRABEZRALFEZGS
E2HBPARE  REREEPRNGERERE
x o AEREBEHPORE M E M AR -

EERMBBRRARBENER

BERRERAARERBEGIMAGSRMANE
BB REERNRIRBEE RGN 2 HER
E o RELAEBMAFHIRZESE MR
R BBERERT BRIMGEARANAE
A5 A AR AR RO M AR Ea e - LAGRBY
BRI FEANRFFRERMERHBARER
Bt - REAMEREENSABE - RETRIE
MTEHAEZ G5 HHE -

REE N EE

BN EERRERMNBREZERA MR
RIELER  BREBERRRE  BRULZIAHR
ERIEEME S - ROTERARENOARAE
AEMALTE ERAREEMERE -

BPEREEZESAMAGRMOFTBET L]
EITER - BUERERBIIETERRE AL
HREIRNTER  UABRRTLEMBREAESS
A EAERERBRL -



Independent Auditors’ Report
BYZBEHRES

'{ REANDA LAU & AU YEUNG

NZZEEE (F8) SMEBAERLR

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation and true and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2009 and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Franklin Lau Shiu Wai
Director
Practising Certificate number P1886

Hong Kong, 30 March 2010
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEEHEBARK

For the year ended 31 December 2009

BE-FTAFS A= —AUEE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UANREZETR)
2009 2008
—EEhE —ETNF
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’000
k3 AR¥T T ARETFT
Turnover ] 4 152,766 127,124
Cost of sales THER A (39,352) (38,819)
Gross profit EF 113,414 88,305
Other income E A 6 6,881 937
Other gains and (losses) Ehlhss & (B18) 7 178 (509)
Distribution and selling costs D M RS (77,684) 47,711
Administrative expenses T (20,518) (15,524)
Profit from operations KR 22,271 25,498
Finance costs REE AR 8 (273) (248)
Profit before income tax BADE 9 21,998 25,250
Income tax credit/(expense) mmEiRe, (1) 10(a) 78 (10,261)
Profit for the year FRARRBIRIEFTF A
&5 T 12 22,076 14,989
Other comprehensive income: Hib2mUWKA :
Exchange differences on translating & GINEEFIEE Y
foreign operations [E 5 =58 41 (3)
Total comprehensive income for FRAEEMBR AL
the year 22,117 14,986
Profit attributable to: LU FEAEEF
Owners of the Company ZiN/NSIEZEDN 22,076 14,989
Total comprehensive income DT EEEEB AL :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZN/NCIE 2SN 41 (3)
Earnings per share BREN
- Basic (RMB cents) —ERN(ARES) 11 3.94 2.68

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

meEEERER
As at 31 December 2009
REFEAFS=A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UANEEZT)
2009 2008
—EENE =T N\F
Notes RMB*000 RMB’000
Bzt ARET T AREFTT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Bearer biological assets PLBEYEE 16 2,169 1,390
Property, plant and equipment ME -~ BE L&Y 17 60,554 59,922
Prepaid land lease payments A e 18 2,348 2,496
Construction in progress EEIRE 19 26,399 14,830
Intangible assets MR E 21 33,350 40,829
Deposit for acquisition of W T (F IR S
land use rights 22 10,000 10,000
134,820 129,467
Current assets REEE
Inventories iy 23 20,729 18,975
Trade receivables ) BINE SEE 24 81,242 67,458
Other receivables, deposits and H A FEUERK »
prepayments Al LIRS RIE 25 26,663 34,934
Loans receivables FEWE 26 18,150 3,000
Prepaid land lease payments B A S 18 125 102
Income tax recoverable RIUEIPriSHL 10,574 15,278
Cash and cash equivalents He MREZEY 27 43,490 48,831
200,973 188,578
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables _ _ JETTE S8R 28 6,708 12,075
Other payables, deposits received Hib g8 -
and accruals 2 ET e MEETE A 56,069 46,985
Other tax payables Hi e I8 8,200 13,239
Dividend payable ERTAR B 345 360
71,322 72,659
Net current assets REEEFEE 129,651 115,919
Total assets less current liabilities RA&EERABER 264,471 245,386
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Borrowings BE 29 6,990 6,990
Deferred tax liabilities RAEFIIE B (F 30 1,499 4,531
8,489 11,521
Net assets EEFRE 255,982 233,865
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERSZA A Bl #EHE A EL#ER
OF THE COMPANY
Share capital PN 31 56,025 56,025
Reserves &G 199,957 177,840
Total equity ERBE 255,982 233,865

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue

by the board of directors on 30 March 2010.

ZHANG HONG
el
Director

EF

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

statements.
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REES
Director
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Balance Sheet

EERAER
As at 31 December 2009
REFEAFS=A=+—H

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UANEEZT)
2009 2008
—EENF ZETN\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
iorza AR¥T T ARETT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Bearer biological assets PR EWEE 16 2,169 1,390
Property, plant and equipment W - BE KGR 17 60,550 59,917
Prepaid land lease payments SEL N ki 18 2,348 2,496
Construction in progress FETIE 19 26,399 14,830
Interests in subsidiaries M N Rl 20 8,865 8,866
Intangible assets EmILEE 21 33,350 40,829
Deposit for acquisition of Wilis T AR e
land use rights 22 10,000 10,000
143,681 138,328
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 23 20,729 18,975
Trade receivables BB SRR 24 94,959 81,002
Other receivables, deposits and BRI - 5T &
prepayments TR A 25 26,560 34,700
Loans receivables =R 26 18,150 3,000
Prepaid land lease payments ENLES 18 125 102
Income tax recoverable AT Y el PG 10,574 15,278
Cash and cash equivalents B MIBESEZEY 27 38,667 44,898
209,764 197,955
Current liabilities nREEE
Trade payables ERESER 28 6,708 12,075
Other payables, deposits received HAEMRIE - B
and accruals o sl MIEHER 55,736 46,967
Amounts due to subsidiaries AN NGIE 20 5,000 5,500
Other tax payables H A eI IR 7,707 12,732
Dividend payable FERTRR B 345 360
75,496 77,634
Net current assets REBEEZFE 134,268 120,321
Total assets less current liabilities @& ERABHEE 277,949 258,649
Non-current liabilities #Jﬁiﬂﬁfi
Borrowings 29 6,990 6,990
Deferred tax liabilities L%RIE\E\E 30 1,499 4,531
8,489 11,521
Net assets EEEE 269,460 247,128
EQUITY B
Share capital f& s 31 56,025 56,025
Reserves ] 32 213,435 191,103
Total equity XA 269,460 247,128
These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue  ZEMBEBREN _E—ETF-A=+HEEES
by the board of directors on 30 March 2010. A RAXHEE D -
ZHANG HONG ZHANG XIAO GUANG
[EN RN
Director Director
= EE
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial — FEB 2 M B A IEREREEE 2 — 39
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

meEme

&R

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE=SEAF A=A — AL

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UANEEZT)
Statutory
Share Exchange surplus Retained
Share capital premium reserve reserve profits Total
B RPEE B e EELES REEF st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARETR ARETR ARBT R ARBT R AR¥TR
(Note 31)  (Note 32(al) (Note 32)  (Note 32(0)
(Fzxar)  (HiEE320a)) (Wsrs2)  (WEE3200)
Balance at 1 January 2008 RZ2Z\F-A-H
pa=i:i 56,025 51,098 221 24,955 86,580 218,879
Comprehensive income 2EKA
Profit for the year EREF - - - - 14,989 14,989
Other comprehensive Ht2ERA
income
Exchange differences on BEBMNEB R MAES
translating overseas REEMERARER L
operations ERER - - (3) - - (3)
Total comprehensive income ~ 2ERALHE - - (3) - 14,989 14,986
Appropriation to statutory BRZETRGEE
surplus reserve - - - 2,229 (2,229 -
Balance as at 31 December ~ R=ZTN\F
2008 +-A=1+-H 56,025 51,098 218 21,184 99,340 233,865
Balance at 1 January 2009 W-EENEF-A-H
b 56,025 51,098 218 21,184 99,340 233,865
Comprehensive income 2EHA
Profit for the year ERGEF - - - - 22,076 22,076
Other comprehensive Ht2ERA
income
Exchange differences on BERNERLS HES
translating overseas REERERNRRZ
operations EXEE - - 4 - - 4
Total comprehensive income 2 EUWA L5 - - 4 - 22,076 2,117
Appropriation to statutory BRZETRHEE
surplus reserve - - - 3,181 (3,181) -
At 31 December 2009 RZEENE
+ZA=1+-H 56,025 51,098 259 30,365 118,235 255,982
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial — B&M 7 Mt B AM IS MARELIE  —5D -
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AN A~ — 1
b2 = Eﬁ@/)lbiﬂs—%
For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE2—FTENF+—_A=+—HItFZE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UANREZETR)
2009 2008
—EEAE —ETNF
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’000
Kz ARETT ARETTT
Cash from operating activities RETHELEZRERE
Profit before income tax FrASELRT A F 21,998 25,250
Adjustments for: FEIER :
Interest income FEUA 6 (309) (316)
Interest expenses FEZH 8 273 248
Write off of and additional HEE R 3G NEEEE &
provision for obsolete and T B
slow-moving inventories 9 - 3,011
Additional provision for impairment TENE S - HihE
loss on trade other receivables BRF K AT EIFTS R
and tax recoverable BB EEE 9 7,943 1,549
Amortisation of intangible assets A A 9 8,099 7,629
Impairment loss on intangible mvEERERE
assets 9 1,230 -
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TER T AR S8R
payments 9 125 103
Depreciation of property, plant and W - BB LB
equipment e 9 6,089 5,734
Fair value (gain)/loss on EYEE—BAF
biological assets — deers E(&F) B 7 (101) 432
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, HEME - BE&
plant and equipment = (AT, B 7 (77) 77
Government subsidy BT as 6 (708) (200)
Operating cash flows before working BIEESEEBAIZKE
capital changes Rens 44,562 43,417
Increase in inventories FEh (1,754) (1,294)
Increase in trade receivables FEURE 5 BR 7RI 0 (14,728) (20,802)
Decrease/(increase) in other receivables,  HAbfEIEIE - 5T %
deposits and prepayments B RIER D, () 8,271 (3,650)
Increase in loans receivable FEUE FRIE N (15,150) -
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables ENEZERCRD),/
10 (5,367) 723
Increase in other payables, HibEN70E - BlET 2
deposits received and accruals NEstE R Z &M 9,084 24,742
(Decrease)/increase in other tax HiEABECRD),
payables o (5,038) 1,344
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 4N TE R B 28 41 (3)
Cash generated from operations RS EEFREE I VIR S 19,921 44,477
42 Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AN A~ — 1
b2 = Eﬁ@/)lbi%‘%
For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE2—FTENF+—_A=+—HItFZE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UANEEZT)
2009 2008
—EEhE —ETNF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
k3 AR¥T T ARETFT
Cash flows from operating activities KRETHELECESRE
Cash generated from operations REXEBREEZRS 19,921 44,477
Interest paid EAFE 8 (273) (248)
PRC income tax paid B RS (5,251) (3,586)
Net cash generated from operating RETHELECHSFE
activities 14,397 40,643
Cash flows from investing activities REERELEZHERE
Purchase of bearer biological assets BE TEREMEE 16 (695) (647)
Purchase of land use rights IR E T b (F A - (10,000)
Purchase of intangible assets BEEFEE 21 (1,850) -
Purchase of property, plant and BEME  BENMEE
equipment 17 (1,039) (2,617)
Purchase of construction in progress EEEEIR 19 (17,343) (21,604)
Proceeds from disposal of bearer HjETEE% EYEE
biological assets FTiS sk 16 17 -
Proceeds from disposal of property, tlj’ﬂ%% JF%E%&E%%
plant and equipment FrigaoaE 170 34
Interest received 2HFILE 6 309 316
Net cash used in investing activities REEXBABESFE (20,431) (34,518)
Cash flows from financing activities BMEXBELZHERE
Proceeds from government subsidy BB FT1S 5RIA 6 708 200
Dividends paid EEIRRE (15) (36)
Net cash generated from financing RMEXRELEZEESTFE
activities 693 164
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and IE%&IR%%{E%
cash equivalents W), nFEE (5,341) 6,289
Cash and cash equivalents at FONRERRESEEY
beginning of year 48,831 42,542
Cash and cash equivalents FRESRRSEEY
at end of year 43,490 48,831
Analysis of the balance of cash and ReRELEEY
cash equivalents Fo= kil
Cash and bank balances R MIRTTEERR 43,490 48,831

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial ~ BEMT 2 Mzt B AR iR EE 2 — &5 -
statements.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was established as a state-owned
enterprise in the People’'s Republic of China (the
“"PRC") in 1989. On 29 December 1995, under the
relevant provisions of the Company Law of the PRC, the
Company was re-organised from a state-owned enterprise
to a limited liability company. On 16 August 1996, with
the approval of the Economic Restructuring Commission
of Jilin Province, the Company was further converted
into a joint stock limited company. On 20 April 1999,
the Company made a bonus issue from capitalisation of
retained profits in the proportion of one bonus share for
every two existing shares.

The Company’s H shares are listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market (“GEM") of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 24 May
2001.

The Company is principally engaged in the manufacture
and distribution of biochemical medicines in the PRC
under the brand names of Changlong and Shendi. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note
20.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"), which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards ("HKAS") and Interpretation
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Company Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the
"GEM Listing Rules”).

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
Annual Report 2009
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICES (continued)
(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

The financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified
by certain biological assets which are carried at fair
value.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the group’s accounting policies.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the financial statements
are disclosed in Note 3.

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
The Group has adopted the following new and
amended HKFRS issued by the HKICPA as of 1
January 2009:

Presentation of Financial
Statements

HKAS 1 (Revised)
HKAS 23 (Revised)

Borrowing Costs

HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27 Cost of an Investment in

(Amendments) a Subsidiary, Jointly
Controlled Entity or
Associate
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

The adoption of the above new and amended
HKFRS had no material effect on the financial
statements of the Group for both the current
and prior reporting periods, except for certain
presentational change as a result of adopting HKAS
1 (Revised) and other changes as set out below.
All relevant changes in accounting polices and
disclosures have been made in accordance with
the provisions of the respective standards.

2.

EXSBEREE(E)

(a)

(b)
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46

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICES (continued)

(b)

Change in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

HKAS 1 (revised) prohibits the presentation of
items of income and expenses (that is,
owner changes in equity” in the statement of
changes in equity, requiring “non-owner changes
in equity” to be presented separately from owner
changes in equity in a statement of comprehensive
income. As a result the group presents the
consolidated statement of changes in equity all
owner changes in equity, whereas all non-owner
changes in equity are presented in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. Comparative
information has been re-presented so that it also
is in conformity with the revised standard. Since
the change in accounting policy only impacts
presentation aspects, there is no impact on
earnings per share.

“non-

In respect of borrowing costs relating to qualifying
assets for which the commencement date
for capitalisation is on or after 1 January 2009,
the Group capitalises borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying assets as part of the cost
of that asset. The Group previously recognised
all borrowing costs as an expense immediately.
This change in accounting policy was due to
the adoption of HKAS 23 Borrowing Costs in
accordance with the transition provisions of the
standard; comparative figures have not been
restated. The change in accounting policy had no
material impact on earnings per share.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICES (continued)

(b)

Change in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

The amendments to HKAS 27 have removed the
requirement that dividends out of pre-acquisition
profits should be recognised as a reduction in
the carrying amount of the investment in the
investee, rather than as income. As a result, as
from 1 January 2009 all dividends receivables
from subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled
entities, whether out of pre- or post-acquisition
profits, will be recognised in the Company’s profit
or loss and the carrying amount of the investment
in the investee will not be reduced unless that
carrying amount is assessed to be impaired as
a result of the investee declaring the dividend.
In such case, in addition to recognising dividend
income in profit or loss, the company would
recognise an impairment loss. In accordance with
the transitional provisions in the amendment, this
new policy will be applied prospectively to any
dividends receivable in the current or future periods
and previous periods have not been restated.

HKFRS 8 replaces HKAS 14 “Segment Reporting”,
and requires segment disclosure to be based on
the way that the group’s chief operating decision
maker regards and manages the group, with the
amounts reported for each reportable segment
being the measures reported to the group’s
chief operating decision maker for the purposes
of assessing segment performance and making
decisions about operating matters. As the business
segments reported by the group is in accordance
with the requirements of HKAS 14 are the same as
the operating segments provided to chief operating
decision makers as required by HKFRS 8, there
are no changes to the operating segments and the
results of operating segments on the adoption of
HKFRS 8.

2.

EXSBEREE(E)

(b)
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. BEAETHEBEGE)
POLICES (continued)

(c)

Possible impact of amendments , new (c)
standards and interpretations issued but

not yet effective for the year ended 31

December 2009

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,

the HKICPA has issued the following amendments,

new standards and interpretations which are not

yet effective of the year ended 31 December 2009

and which have not been adopted in these financial

statements.

EEMAEEARBE_ZZH
F+-A=t—HILFELEHXK
Z1ER] ~ MEAIR BB
Iod: 02
BERMAMBHREREY &L
A AEEEM AT HAREE
ETNF+_A=+—HIEFEAE
M AR L ARTRAANER]T -
R N R o

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RUT &Rz %5

REXK
HKFRS 3 (Revised), Business Combination 1 July 2009
BAVBIRELRNEIR(KIER]) - FHEEVf —TENFEA—H
Amendments to HKAS 27, Consolidation and separate 1 July 2009
financial statements
BBGTRERE27R(BAIR) - 78 R TAH#HZE —TENFEA—H
Amendments to HKAS 39, Financial Instruments: 1 July 2009
Recognition and measurement — Eligible hedged items
BEGTERIEISR(ERIR)  IFETA M TA —EThFtHA—H
BRREE — 5 EIEEHIES
HK(IFRIC) 17, Distribution of non-cash assets to owners 1 July 2009
T8 (BRMBRERERE]) 2817 ARES KR EEE —TTHhFLA—H

Improvements to HKFRS 2009
“TENFEBYBRELER (L)

Amendments to HKFRS 2, Group cash-settled share-based
payment transaction

BAMBRELBNF2RUERIR) - RO T —EEAE2AEZ
BRGITHK S

Amendments to HKAS 32, Classification of rights issue

EBGEERE2R(EFIAR) - #HK745E

HK(IFRIC) 19, Extinguishing financial liabilities with equity instruments
ER(BEREMBREREEES) 2819 URATAKENFEE

HKAS 24 (Revised), Related Party Disclosure

BEAGTTREAFE 2455 (RHEE]) - BT 2 1555

Amendments to HK(IFRIC) 14, Prepayments of a minimum
funding requirement

Fo(BRYHRERERES) 2B 14(EFTX) REEXHEZ

TEIT5
HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments
BB RELERFSE - UHETA

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICES (continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Possible impact of amendments , new
standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2009 (continued)

The directors of the Company have confirmed
that the Group has commenced considering
the potential impact of the above HKFRS
and interpretations but is not yet in a position
to determine whether these HKFRS and
interpretations will have a significant impact on
how the results of operations and financial position
are prepared and presented. These standards and
interpretations may results in changes in the future
as to how the results and financial position are
prepared and presented.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December each year.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the
Company has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies generally accompanying a
shareholding of more than one half of the voting
rights. The existence and effect of potential voting
rights that are currently exercisable or convertible
are considered when assessing whether the
company controls another entity.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are consolidated from the effective
date of acquisition, being the date on which the
Group obtains control, or up to the effective
date of disposal, as appropriate and continue to
be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.

2.
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50

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICES (continued)

(e)

(f)

Subsidiaries (continued)

The purchase method of accounting is used to
account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the
Group. The cost of an acquisition is measured
as the fair value of the assets given, equity
instruments issued and liabilities incurred or
assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs
directly attributable to the acquisition. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination
are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of
any minority interest. The excess of the cost of
acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share
of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded
as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than
the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired, the difference is recognised directly in
the statement of comprehensive income.

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated.

In the Company's balance sheet, the investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision
for impairment losses (note 2(k)). The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividends received and receivable.

Biological assets

Biological assets are living animals and plants
managed by the Group which is involved in
the agricultural activities of the transformation
of biological assets for sale or into agricultural
produce.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICES (continued)

(f)

(9)

Biological assets (continued)

Biological assets are measured at fair value less
estimated point-of-sale costs at initial recognition
and at each balance sheet date. The fair value
of these biological assets is determined based
on active market prices in the local market with
reference to comparable age, breed and genetic
merit. The gain or loss arising on initial recognition
and subsequent changes in fair values less
estimated point-of-sale costs of biological assets is
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
it arise. Biological assets that are in the stage of
cultivation or do not have a quoted market price in
an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured are recognised in the balance
sheet at cost less any impairment losses.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an asset comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its present working condition and
location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred
after the asset has been put into operation, such
as repairs and maintenance, are charged to the
income statement during the financial period in
which they are incurred. In situations where it can
be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has
resulted in an increase in the future economic
benefits expected to be obtained from the use of
the assets, and where the cost of the item can be
measured reliably, the expenditure is capitalised as
an additional cost of the asset.

2.
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52

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICES (continued)

(9)

(h)

(i)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate the costs to their residual value
over their estimated useful lives. The assets’
residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate at the end of each reporting
period. The principal annual rates are as follows:

Buildings 10 to 30 years
Plant and machinery 10 years
Transportation equipment 8 years
Furniture, fixtures 5 years

and equipment

Gain or loss on the disposal are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised in the income statement.

Prepaid land lease payments

Prepaid land lease payments under operating
leases are initially stated at cost and subsequently
recognised on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents buildings,
plant and equipment under construction and
pending installation, and is stated at cost less
any impairment losses. No depreciation is made
on construction in progress until such time as
the relevant property, plants and equipment are
available for use. Cost comprises all construction
expenditure and other direct costs of construction.
Construction in progress is transferred to the
appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when the asset being constructed
becomes available to use.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICES (continued)

()
(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Intangible assets

Purchased know-how and prescription
Purchased know-how and prescription are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses. Amortisation is charged on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives,
which range from 5 to 12 years from the date of
commercial production. The estimated useful life
and amortisation method are reviewed at the end
of each balance sheet date, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised
as an expense in the period in which it is
incurred. Expenditure on development activities is
capitalised if the product or process is technically
and commercially feasible and the Group has
sufficient resources and the intention to complete
development. The expenditure capitalised includes
the costs of materials, direct labour, and in
appropriate proportion of overheads and borrowing
costs, where applicable. Capitalised development
costs are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation
begins when development is completed and the
assets is available for use. Other development
expenditure is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.

Purchased in-process research and
development assets acquired through
separate purchase

In-process research and development assets
acquired through separate purchase are recognised
as intangible assets at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses.

Amortisation and impairment assessment are
accounted for in a similar manner as internal
development expenditure set out in (ii) above.

2.
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54

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICES (continued)

(k)

n

Impairment of assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have not
yet available for use are not subject to amortisation
and are tested annually for impairment. Assets
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset'’s fair value less costs to sell and value
in use. For the purpose of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at each
reporting date.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
or associates is required upon receiving dividends
from these investments if the dividend exceeds the
total comprehensive income of the subsidiaries or
associates in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment exceeds
the carrying amount of the investee’s net assets
including goodwvill.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using
the weighted average cost formula. The cost of
finished goods and work in progress comprises
raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and
related production overheads (based on normal
operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses.
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(Expressed in Renminbi)

(i)

(ii)

(UANRBETR)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICES (continued)
(m) Financial assets

Loans and receivables is the sole category of
financial assets of the Group.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. They are
included in current assets, except for maturities
greater than 12 months after the reporting period.
These are classified as non-current assets. The
Company’s loans and receivables comprise “trade
and other receivables”, “loan receivables” and
"“cash and cash equivalents” in the balance sheet
(note 2(n)).

Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and the
Company has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership. Loans and receivables are
subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Impairment of financial assets

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Company assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
“loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated.
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(ii)

(UAARBZETR)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICES (continued)
(m) Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

The criteria that the Company uses to determine
that there is objective evidence of an impairment

loss include:
o Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
obligor;

A breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

The company, for economic or legal reasons
relating to the borrower's financial difficulty,
granting to the borrower a concession that
the lender would not otherwise consider;

It becomes probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

The disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties; or

Observable data indicating that there is
a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows from a portfolio of
financial assets since the initial recognition
of those assets, although the decrease
cannot yet be identified with the individual
financial assets in the portfolio, including:

(i) adverse changes in the payment
status of borrowers in the portfolio;

(ii) national or local economic conditions
that correlate with defaults on the
assets in the portfolio.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICES (continued)

(m)

(ii)

(n)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
The Company first assesses whether objective
evidence of impairment exists.

The amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate. The asset’s carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of
the loss is recognised in the income statement. If
a loan or held-to-maturity investment has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest
rate determined under the contract. As a practical
expedient, the Company may measure impairment
on the basis of an instrument'’s fair value using an
observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment
loss is recognised in the income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand,
deposits held at call with banks, and other short-
term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less, and bank
overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within
"borrowings” in current liabilities on the balance
sheet.
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58

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICES (continued)

(o)

Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income
statement, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period in
the countries where the Company operates
and generates taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
However, the deferred income tax is not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (or laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the end of the reporting
period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.
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(p)

(q)
(i)

(UANRBETR)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICES (continued)
(o) Current and deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when the deferred income taxes assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention
to settle the balances on a net basis.

Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot
be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed
as a contingent liability, unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more future events, are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the
Company are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
financial statements are presented in Renminbi
("RMB"), which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.
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60

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICES (continued)

(q)
(i)

Foreign currency translation (continued)
Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income statement,
except when deferred in equity as qualifying cash
flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the income statement within “finance
costs”. All other foreign exchange gains and losses
are presented in the income statement within
"other operating income/expenses”.

Non-monetary financial assets or liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the dates of the initial transactions.

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries are currencies other than the RMB. As
at the balance sheet date, the asset and liabilities of
these entities are translated into the presentation
currency of the Company at the exchange rates
ruling at the balance sheet date and, their income
statements are translated into RMB at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year. The
resulting exchange differences are included in the
exchange reserve. On disposal of a foreign entity,
the deferred cumulative amount recognised in
equity relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in profit or loss.
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(i)

(ii)

(UANRBETR)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICES (continued)
(r) Government grants

Grants from the PRC government are recognised
at their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and the
Group will comply with the attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred
and recognised in the income statement over the
period necessary to match them with the costs
that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants that compensate the Group
for the costs of an asset are deducted from the
carrying amount of the asset and consequently
are effectively recognised in profit or loss over
the useful life of the asset by way of reduced
depreciation expenses.

Employee benefits

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of its
employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ relevant
income and are expensed in the income statement
as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group's employer contributions vest fully with
the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.
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62

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICES (continued)

(s)
(ii)

(t)

Employee benefits (continued)

Pension obligations (continued)

In addition, pursuant to the government regulations
in the People’s Republic of China (the “"PRC"),
the Group is required to contribute an amount to
certain retirement benefit schemes based on the
wages for the year of those employees in the
PRC. The local municipal government undertakes
to assume the retirement benefits obligations of
those employees of the Group. Contributions to
these retirement benefits schemes are charged
to the statement of comprehensive income as
incurred.

The employee’s of the Group’s which operates
in the PRC are required to participate in the
state-managed retirement scheme operated by
the local municipal government. Contributions
are made based on a certain percentage of the
payroll costs and are charged to the statement of
comprehensive income as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the state-managed
retirement scheme.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently carried at amortised cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities
are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to
the extent that it is probable that some or all of the
facilities will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is
deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent
there is no evidence that it is probable that some
or all of the facilities will be drawn down, the fee
is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services
and amortised over the period of the facility to
which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Company has an unconditional right
to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting period.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICES (continued)

(u) Related parties
A party is related to the Group if:

(i) directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, the party:

(a) controls, is controlled by, or is under
common control with, the Group;

(b) has an interest in the Group that
gives it significant influence over the
Group; or

(c) has joint control over the Group;

(if) the party is an associate of the Group;

(iii) the party is a joint venture in which the
Group is a venturer,

(iv) the party is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or its parent;

(V) the party is a close member of the family of
any individual referred to in (i) or (iv); and

(Vi) the party is an entity that is controlled,
jointly controlled or significantly influenced
by or for which significant voting power
in such entity resides with, directly or
indirectly, any individual referred to in (iv) or
(V).
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64

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICES (continued)

(v)

(i)

(ii)

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sale
of goods and services in the ordinary course of
the Group's activities. Revenue is shown net of
value-added tax, returns, rebates and discounts.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount
of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow to the entity
and when specific criteria have been met for each
of the Group’s activities as described below. The
Group bases its estimates on historical results,
taking into consideration the type of customer,
the type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement.

Sales of goods

Sales revenue is recognised when the merchandise
is delivered and title has been passed to the
customers.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis
using the effective interest method by applying
the rate that discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument to the net carrying amount of the
financial assets.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICES (continued)
(w) Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Accounts
payable are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If
not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Segment reporting

Operating segment, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the
purpose of allocating resources to, and assessing
the performance of, the Group’s various line of
business and geographical locations.

Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company's
shareholders is recognised as a liability in the
Company'’s financial statements in the period
in which the dividends are approved by the
Company’s shareholders.
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EXSBEREE(E)

(w)

(x)

(y)

P B 5 BRI EL At FE A R X
FENRBERASEEREEFBE
R R R B B S E A RS
EENINEE - RENRNRE
FTHE —F R —F AR (HE
RHEGIEEE L ERHBEAN R
) ARREaE - T #3F
MBABERIIR

7R E
BENBRBBRERAZ2HRZES
BEA TR DRERDEERT
7N E2 [ S T R D M R S
KEMEPRETAEERSEE
BABZMEERMAEE

IR 2k
DIRTARBIRRABERAAF
RERA AR R SR HBARERR
AR BHREAT RS RAE -
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66

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

Estimates and judgements are continuously evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

(a) Impairment of assets (other than trade and
other receivables)
The Group tests annually whether assets have
suffered any impairment in accordance with
the accounting policy stated in note 2(k). The
recoverable amounts of cash-generating units
have been determined based on value-in-use
calculations. The value-in-use calculation requires
the Group to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate present
value, which has been prepared on the basis of
management’s assumptions and estimates.

(b) Impairment of trade and other receivables

Provision for impairment of trade and other
receivables is made based on assessment of
the recoverability of trade receivables and other
receivables. The identification of doubtful debts
requires management judgement and estimates.
Where the actual outcome or expectation in
future is different from the original estimate, such
differences will impact the carrying value of trade
receivables and other receivables and doubtful
debt expenses/written back in the period in which
the estimate has been changed.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

(c)

(d)

Estimation of useful lives of property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets

The Group’s management determines the
estimated useful lives and related depreciation or
amortisation charges for its property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets. This estimate
is based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equipment and
purchase know-how and prescription of similar
nature and functions. It could change significantly
as a result of technical innovations and competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycles.
Management will increase the depreciation or
amortisation charge where useful lives are less
than previously estimated lives, or it will write-off
or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Income taxes

The Company is subject to income tax in the PRC.
Significant judgement is required in determining
the provision for income tax. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain. The Company
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact
the current and deferred income tax assets and
liabilities in the period in which such determination is
made.

3.

BAE A & (8)

(c)

(d)
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68

TURNOVER

The principal activities of the Group are manufacture and
distribution of biochemical medicines. Revenue represents
the invoiced value of merchandise sold less allowances for
returns, discounts, value-added tax and other sales related
taxes.

E S
AEBTBEXGRIERDHELER
TAREE - WAHERRNERE  ¥E
WMEBRRE - 10 - HEHRREMIEE
MHRATR IR AR ©

2009 2008

—EThEF T NF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®ET T ARETTT

Sales of medicine BYHE 152,766 127,124
SEGMENT INFORMATION DHEER

The Group has only one business segment which is the
manufacture and distribution of biochemical medicines in
the PRC. During the years ended 31 December 2009 and
2008, turnover of the Group is generated entirely from
sales in the PRC and all identifiable assets of the Group
are located in the PRC. Accordingly, no business and
geographical segments information is presented. This is
consistent with the way in which information is reported
internally to the group’s top management for the purposes
of resource allocation and performance assessment.

AEBRE—EXHLE  BIRPERE
Mo EE LY RPKE - BE_TEN
FRZFFENF+A=Z+—RHLFE "
AEBEXBEHRETEZHEE - BA
SEMBRBEAEESMNPE - At
WEZHNEBRIBRESEER - WERAE
BRARRKRAF A AEERHTHER
BANZ2RERTTA B -

OTHER INCOME Hablg A
2009 2008
—EThF —EENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETTT

Recovery of bad debts previously W Bl AR

written off 70 3562
Bank interest income IRITFBULA 309 316
Government subsidy (Note) B RE (A7) 708 200
Others Hip 5,794 69
6,881 937
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group Brit - BEZETEAFT-_A=+-RLEFE-

received a subsidy of RMB200,000 (2008: RMB200,000)
from the Finance Bureau of Huinan, Jilin Province, the PRC,
which aimed at the general financing of the development of
listed companies in that region. The Group received another
subsidy of RMB500,000 (2008: Nil) from the Technology
Bureau in Huinan County as the subsidy for the plantation of
wild ginseng.
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7. OTHER GAINS AND (LOSSES)

7. EHfthmk(BR)

2009 2008
—EEhE ZEEN\F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET T AREEFTT
Fair value gains/(losses) on biological EMBE—BZ AN THERN
assets — deers (Note 16) (B18)(Hit16) 101 (432)
Gains/(loss) on disposal of property, HEME  BEMRERRN,
plant and equipment (E518) 77 (77)
178 (509)
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. MERAK
2009 2008
—EENF —ETNF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET T AREEFTT
Interest expenses on borrowings not BERRFREHEECEEY
wholly repayable after five years MEEA 273 248
iﬂﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁ”‘éiﬂ:ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁﬁlﬂ AFE] 69
ZEENFFHR
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9. OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 9. FEHAIZEERR

2009 2008
—EEAEF —EE)N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bz AR®¥T T AREEFTT
Operating profit before FriSHiRn 2 48 & m
income tax for the year is arrived B30k (5+ A)
at after-charging/(crediting):— TFIBIE -
Cost of inventories sold (excluding 2 HEFEMA
additional provision for, and (B3B38 b0 R i 8
write off of obsolete and BEERBHETE
slow-moving inventories) ) 37,581 34,417
Written off of and provision SRR R R R i
for obsolete and slow-moving FEEE
inventories = 3,011
Impairment loss on trade FEWE SR 2 R EEIE 24
receivables 943 1,494
Provision for tax recoverable AT B 7 A A 7,000 -
Auditors’ remuneration:— AN
Provision for the year FREHE 265 530
Under/(over) provision BEFEERETE
in prior year (FREER ) 69 (37)
Amortisation of intangible assets S 21
(included in cost of sales) (B ASHERA) 8,099 7,529
Impairment loss on intangible EEEREERE 21
assets 1,230 -
Research and development cost i34 & 48 2,638
Amortisation of prepaid land TER T HoTH S 18
lease payments (included in (BIASHERA)
cost of sales) 125 103
Depreciation of property, Y% - B K& B 17
plant and equipment e 6,089 5,734
Employee benefits expenses BTREMER
(excluding directors’ and (TREEER
supervisors' remuneration EEME
(Note 14)):— (His£14)) -
Salaries and allowances e MoEEL 36,821 29,034
Pension scheme contributions RIREFTBIHER 215 577
Fair value (gains)/losses on EMEE—BZAF 16
biological assets — deers BE(&H), |k’ (101) 432
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, HEWE - HEK
plant and equipment =i (BA), B (77) 77
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10.

INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE

(a)

Income tax represents:

FrgBi(E%), /X
(a)  FEBLEIE :

2009 2008
—EEhE —EFENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T ARETT

PRC enterprise income tax Bl SRS
— Current year —KFE 5,457 7,577
— Over-provision is prior year —KFLIREE (2,503) -
Deferred taxation (Note 30) RIERIIE (H75730) (3,032) 2,684
(78) 10,261

The PRC enterprise income tax is provided
according to the relevant laws and regulations in
the PRC.

On 16 March 2007, the National People’s Congress
approved the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law,
which became effective from 1 January 2008.
In accordance with the new tax law, an unified
enterprise income tax rate of 25% is applied to
both domestic-invested enterprises and foreign-
invested enterprises.

On 24 July, 2009, the Company was accredited as
a “National New and High-tech Enterprise” by the
Jilin Provincial Science and Technology Bureau (&
MERIERTEE) and is entitled to a reduced PRC
Enterprise Income tax rate of 15% for the year
ended 31 December 2009. (2008: 25%).

The Group's subsidiary in Hong Kong is subject to
Hong Kong profits tax calculated at 16.5% (2008:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for the
year. No Hong Kong profits tax is provided as there
is no estimated assessable profit for the year (2008:
Nil).

REICEMSERYRETERBER A
FEkeE

RoBELEZA+AR  2EAAEH
B ELREFERE - BT\ —
A—BRAER - BEFHE - FERNER
SNE IR — B R 25% BB R AR
Bi o

ARARINZZEZNF LA THBESMK
BRERNEEARRSH ¥ - XAF
REBEE-ZTAFE+-_A=+—HIFE
AR e B E TSR R 2 15% 8N
H(ZEZNF 1 25%) °

REERBEBHNNE R RARMGHERS
w5 H16.5% (ZFENF  16.5%) 5T EFI
58 - ARNF AW EGFTERT R (=
TTNF &) AUEAREEENG
it o

EHERMRRECERBRAARAT 77
TETAFEH
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10. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE 10. FrB8FH(ESR) X H(E)
(continued)
(b) Reconciliation between tax (credit)/ (b) BE(ER) XZHESHHER
expense and accounting profit at RERBRYEERMOT ¢

applicable tax rate:

2009 2008
—EENF —BTNF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARETTT

Profit before income tax T AR T 21,998 25,250
Notional tax calculated at PRC R REEMSEHEIS%

enterprise income tax rate of 15% (ZZZNF : 265%):1E

(2008: 25%) A B A 3,300 6,313
Tax effect of non-taxable income HBERH AT 2 (30) (276)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 7~ ] FOFH B sz RO T 75 52 28 1,407 1,724

Deferred tax on temporary differences @ FEE R Z=5E

in prior year BIERTE (1,230) 3,371
Tax relief BIEE %R (2,503) (973)
Effect of decreased tax rate METHzZE (1,022) -
Others Hih - 102
Income tax (credit)/expense R8s (%), ST (78) 10,261
72 Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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11.

12.

13.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the
year ended 31 December 2009 is based on the profit
attributable to owners of the Group for the year of
RMB22,076,000 (2008: RMB14,989,000) and 560,250,000
shares in issue during the year (2008: 560,250,000
shares).

Diluted earnings per share is not presented as there were
no dilutive potential ordinary shares in existence during the
years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE COMPANY

Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2009 includes a profit of
RMB23,333,000 (2008: RMB14,973,000) which has been
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company
(Note 32).

DIVIDENDS

No dividend has been proposed or paid by the Company
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2009 (2008:
RMB: Nil).

11.

12.

13.

BRER
BE-_ZZEAE+-_A=+—RHI-EE -
BRERBFDBRBEFAREEREE A
JE 15 % B A R #522,076,000 T ( — 2=
ANF - AFR#14,989,0007T) N ERE
%% 17 I 17 560,250,000 % ( — T Z )\ 4F :
560,250,0000% )5t & -

HRBZE-ZZNFR-TTNF+_H
=t—HIFMEFEYEEEEEER
B B2 5| SREE RN

RRBFER ABIEEF

HE-_ZZNAF+_A=+—HIEE
W ARRREEE AEAE R EEEFA
R#23333,000(ZEFNE : ARKE
14,973,00070) * #Z & F B R AR R 2 B
TEIMER T IR (FE32) o

BRE

ARG TRFBHARNEE ST hE
T A=+ —BUEFEZAMRRKRE(ZE
SN\FE) -
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14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ 14.
REMUNERATION
(a) Directors’ remuneration
Details of remuneration paid to the Directors of
the Company, which were all below HK$1,000,000
(equivalent to RMB881,800 for the year ended 31
December 2009 and RMB893,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2008) and disclosed pursuant
to the GEM Listing Rules and Section 161 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, are as follows:—

EERERITRAEMS

(a) EEME
FEBAARRASEEIN S
1K H21,000,0008 T (REE=Z
ThFET_A=+—BLFERE
MRARES81,800 L MAEZE —F
ZNFF+ZA=+—HIEFEEE
B AREES93,0007T) W RIEAIZEIR
FHRBIREBREHENE 16115
W - HFHBT

2009 —EEhE
Salaries, Pension
allowances fund
Directors’ and other con- 2009
fees benefits tributions Total
e 2B —EBENF
e REMAZ BARSEN ame
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRT AR¥TR AR%BTR AR%BTxR
Executive Directors: HiTESE
Zhang Hong G - 28 8 36
Zhang Xiao Guang iR - 97 8 105
Zhao Bao Gang HHE M - 93 8 101
Tian Xin Guo FH T 2 - 288 8 296
Liang Fu Xiang 2iEtE - 136 8 144
Chen Qi Ming PREEA - 145 8 153
Wu Guo Wen REIX - 100 8 108
Independent Non-Executive — B UIEHTEE :
Directors:
Shen Yu Xiang LER - 101 - 101
Yan Li Jin Biee - 8 - 8
Xue Chang Qing BERE - 8 - 8
- 1,004 56 1,060
74 Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES' 14. EERSHRITHRAEME (&)
REMUNERATION (continued)
(a) Directors’ remuneration (continued) (a) E=Ms
2008 —EENE
Salaries,
allowances Pension
Directors’ and other fund 2008
fees benefits  contributions Total
Yo - A ZEE)N\F
we REMAZE  BARSHK Bile
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTT ARETT ARBTT ARBTT
Executive Directors: HITEE -
Zhang Hong gRaA - 29 2 31
Zhang Xiao Guang RN - 222 2 224
Zhao Bao Gang HHE M - 116 2 118
Tian Xin Guo (appointed on HFBE(RZTTN - 274 2 276
28 February 2008) ZAZtNH
EZT)
Liang Fu Xiang (appointed on  Z@E(RZZTZ N - 264 2 266
28 February 2008) —A=+NH
EZT)
Chen Qi Ming (appointed on  BERIBB(A=ZZE N - 150 2 152
28 February 2008) ZAZ+tNH
EZT)
Wu Guo Wen (appointedon  REIX(RAZZTZN - 109 2 111
28 February 2008) FZAZ+N\H
EZT)
Li Yu Xian (resigned on N (e - 2 1 3
28 February 2008) NFEZRZFTN
HEHE)
Cui Shu Mei (resigned on ERERN-TT - 2 1 3
28 February 2008) NEFZAZ ‘H\
BEHE)
Independent Non-Executive — B/ IH7TEE -
Directors:
Shen Yu Xiang LR 97 - - 97
Yan Li Jin (appointed on BE2(R=2F) - - - -
28 February 2008) FZA= Jr/\ E
EBET)
Xue Chang Qing (appointed on  BRE (R -ZF) - - - -
28 February 2008) FZA= Jr/\ E
BZT)
Nan Zheng (resigned on B (R=ZT) - - - -
28 February 2008) FZA= Jr/\ E
BHE)
97 1,168 16 1,281

There were no arrangements under which
a director waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments, and no incentive payment or
compensation for loss of office was paid or
payable to any director during the years ended 31

December 2009 and 2008.

BE_ZZAFR_ZFZTNEFET_A
BEAMEENEXR

=t+—RIFE-
ERECMME 22

T ESL R E

=B BN EAT RE SR AE

iMﬁ?ﬁﬁE“Eikﬁ%ﬂigﬁﬁE’/}ﬁ

ZETNFFR
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14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ 14.
REMUNERATION (continued)
(b)  Senior executives’ remuneration (b)
Details of remuneration paid to the Supervisors of
the Company which were all below HK$1,000,000
(equivalent to RMB881,800 for the year ended 31
December 2009 and RMB893,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2008) are as follows:—

EERERITRAEMS (F)

BRITHRAEME

REERARBSESINZME
HIER 1,000,000 T (REBEE=-F
ENF+_A=+—HILFERE
RARS81,800 T EREE-Z
ENE+_A=+—RHLFERE

M AR#893,0007T) - HFIEM
™

Salaries,

allowances
and other Pension fund 2009
benefits contributions Total
e —EENF
REMAZE  EASHRK BMe
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T AR®T T

Supervisors: %

Zhang Jing Zhou s 92 4 96
Li Bao Hai FEE 20 4 24
Wu Wei Men RFEE 24 4 28
136 12 148

Salaries,

allowances
and other  Pension fund 2008
benefits  contributions Total
Fra - REL —ETNF
REMFZE  RASEK e
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT

Supervisors: 2%

Zhang Jing Zhou s 96 2 98
Li Bao Hai FEG 14 2 16
Wu Wei Men REER 19 2 21
129 6 135

HE_TTZNFR-_FTN\F+A=
+T—HALFE  SEEREEHEXRAE
WERMMN S 2 25 - TEREEESE
2 BERR AT Sk R (S (R (T BB S (E -

There were no arrangements under which
a Supervisor waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments, and no incentive payment or
compensation for loss of office was paid or payable
to any supervisor during the years ended 31
December 2009 and 2008.
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14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’

REMUNERATION (continued)

(c) Five highest paid individuals
The five highest paid individuals during the year
included four Directors (2008: three Directors)
whose remuneration is set out in (a) above. Details
of remuneration of the remaining one (2008: two)
highest paid, non-director employees whose
remuneration were all below HK$1,000,000
(equivalent to RMB881,800 for the year ended 31
December 2009 and RMB893,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2008) are as follows:—

14.

EERERITRAEMS (F)

EEREEFHAL

FASEERTMHNALTREILE
E(ZZENF 3REH) 20N
B FEER 3@ ET o BN
rEFRESRIBERFHEES (=
TENGF 1 28) RFHHHER
1,000,000 T (BAZE =TT NF
+-—A=+—HIEFEHERA
R ¥881,800t h#H = =T ZT N\F
+Z A=+ —HIEFEHERAR
#893,0007T) 2 EEERE 2 H

(c)

ENEISLA T ¢
2009 2008
—EThF T NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETF T AREEFTT
Salaries, allowances and other benefits & - 2BE R E ATz 265 411
Pension scheme contributions RIREETEIHEER 10 9
275 420

During the years ended 31 December 2009 and
2008, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
these highest paid employees as an inducement to
join, or upon joining the Group, or as compensation
for loss of office.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES
Employees of the Group are members of a state-
managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the
PRC government, or in the case of the employees in Hong
Kong, a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefits scheme ("MPF scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets
of the MPF scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The Group is
required to contribute a certain percentage of its payroll to
the retirement benefits schemes to fund the benefits. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefits schemes is to make the required contributions
under the schemes. The employer’s contributions vest
fully once they are made. At 31 December 2009 and 2008,
no forfeited contributions were available to reduce the
contributions payable in future years.

15. 15.

BE-_ZTZNFER=-ZEZEN\F+=A
=t+—ALFE  AEERERZESH
B B XN ERMSEAREMAZ ZE K
(IR @B ) BB > F1E -

RGBS
AEBEERTERAFEENEREER
REFE BN E - MAEERERRIRE
BRRHME LTS ERPIR T RIMER
e R ERRGE(TRBESFE])HOK
8- BEAENEERAEENEET)
R—EBLEENESDRFA - AEE
ARESNTENET AN LHZRIKE
METEIHFIABBZIBRRH - AEBENZ
BANEME AR ME— B EIRE %S
TEHFEERHIR - BEHFRELRERS
RREEME R-_ZETNFR_FTTNF
TZA=1—8  AEERDRUERAT
PRI AR SR FE RS R

REBEZE-_ZTAFT+_A=Z+—RHILFE "
REERE A HRREFFEIHERABARE
215,0007C(=ZZ)\F :« AR¥577,0007T) ©

The Group's contribution to retirement benefits schemes
for the year ended 31 December 2009 amounted to
RMB215,000 (2008: RMB577,000).
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16. BEARER BIOLOGICAL ASSETS 16. TREBEVEE
Bearer biological assets comprise: TEREWEERTE
The Group and the Company
EEERANT
2009 2008
—ETAF —EENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETTT
Deers — immature, at fair value B—RKF - IBEATE 11 5
Deers — mature, at fair value E—KF - BmATE 221 143
Ginseng, at cost A2 IRAR 1,414 827
Vineyard, at cost BE - BEAK 523 415
Carrying amount at 31 December R+-—A=+—HZEEE 2,169 1,390

78 Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
Annual Report 2009



Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R R B

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UANREZT)

16.

BEARER BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued) 16.

Reconciliation of carrying amounts of bearer biological
assets:

TREEMEE(E)
TR EmEERMELR

The Group and the Company

AEBRALT
2009 2008
—EBAE —TT)\F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T R ARETTT

Deers 53
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—HZEAE 148 580
Loss arising from changes NEHEZERELEEES|IH

in fair value less estimated point-of-sale  {fEtSSE S ANE £ 2

costs attributable to physical changes BB (HZ7%9)

(Notes 7 and 9) (155) (15)
Gain/(loss) arising from changes N EEZEFHEREE S| B2

in fair value less estimated point-of-sale (HEHHES R AES 2

costs attributable to price changes Wz (ks18) (H729)

(Notes 7 and 9) 256 417)
Decrease due to sales Bl &5 1 T P (17) -
Carrying amount at 31 December R+-—A=+—HZEmEE 232 148
Ginseng AB
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—HZEAEE 827 595
Additions during the year FRRE 587 232
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ A=+—HZEEE 1,414 827
Vineyard 7
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZEEE 415 -
Additions during the year FRRE 108 415
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ A=+—HZE®RE 523 415

2,169 1,390

The carrying amounts of immature and mature deers
were valued at market values by reference to prices in the
local market of comparable age and breed. The carrying
amounts of ginseng and vineyard were valued at their
original costs. These assets are in their early stage of
cultivation and preparation and active market prices are
not available. In addition, the Directors are of the view that
the original costs would approximate their fair values at
this stage of their development.

AKERKEREZEEESZ TS
BB EHLREZEBREMESE - A
2R BAENRAERVERATE - 2%
BERNEENEFVIS - RWEEET
B - B4 EER/NIARAATEFER
ZBRMBEBRZ N FERE -

EHERMERECEEBRAERAT  7Q
TETAFFH

—==



Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R R B

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UANREZT)

17.

80

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17. Y%  BERXHE

Furniture,
Plantand Transportation fixtures and
Buildings machinery equipment equipment Total
HE$ER
BT HER S BukeE B o
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ANRETT NS S NEEFT NS S NEEFT
The Group bS]
Cost; XA
At 1 January 2008 E/LTT/W
—R- 33438 44,74 3,069 577 82,788
Transfer from construction =2 E@I&
in progress (Note 19) (Hiz19) 14,654 - - - 14,654
Additions R 2 1316 1,118 181 2617
Disposals i} - - (341) - (341)
Reclassified from prepaid land AT REER
lease payments (Note 18) »ElE18) 1,900 - - - 1,900
Other reclassification HEmEHE 212 (212) - - -
Exchange adjustments B3 g - - - (3) (3)
At 31 December 2008 R-EE\F
+-A=+-H 50,206 45,818 3,836 755 101,615
Transfer from construction BREATRTR
in progress (Note 19) (Hiz#19) 5,400 374 - - 5,774
Additions R - 447 541 56 1,039
Disposals it - - (953) - (953)
At 31 December 2009 RZEENE
+-A=1+-H 55,606 46,634 3424 1,811 07,475
Accumulated depreciation: ZEE
At 1 January 2008 E/\_TT/W
—A- 1425 25,211 2113 1,262 36,011
Reclassified from prepaid land J’Eﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁ
lease payments (Note 18) »(lE18) 181 - - - 181
Other reclassification HEmEH5HE 16 (16) - - -
Charge for the year (Note 9) ERE K9 1,521 3,800 298 115 5,734
Written back on disposals HERRD - - (230) - (230)
Exchange adjustments AR - - - 3 3
At 31 December 2008 R-ZEN\F
TZA=t-H 9,143 28,995 2,181 1374 41,693
Charge for year (Note 9) EW%ME@) 1,748 3,888 357 % 6,089
Written back on disposals LERD - - (861) - 861)
At 31 December 2009 RZZTNE
+-A=t-H 10,891 32,883 1,677 1470 46,921
Carrying amount: RAE
At 31 December 2009 RZEENF
+-A=+-H 44715 13,751 1,747 341 60,554
At 31 December 2008 RZEENE
+-A=+-H 41,063 16,823 1,665 381 59,922

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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17.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17. Y%  BERRXEGE)

(continued)
Furniture,
Plantand Transportation fixtures and
Buildings machinery equipment equipment Total
X FEKER N
HER#E e B4} -
RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBO0
ARBTT ARET ARETT ARETT ARBTT
The Company YN
Cost: A 33438 44,74 3,059 1,510 82,721
At1 January 2008 R-ZZ\E—f—H 33,438 44714 3,069 1,510 82,721
Transfer from construction BREHRIR
in progress (Note 19) (h7i19) 14,654 - - - 14,654
Additions R 2 1,316 1,118 181 2,617
Disposals Hj’EE - - (341) - (341)
Reclassified from prepaid land B LHEEEN
lease payments (Note 18) HE(I7E18) 1,900 - - - 1,900
Other reclassification HtsH5E 212 (212) - - -
At 31 December 2008 RZZTN\F
tZA=1-R 50,206 45,818 3836 1,691 101,561
Transfer from construction BRARRIRE
in progress (Note 19) (H7:19) 5,400 374 - - 5,774
Addition N - 442 541 56 1,039
Disposals irt - - (953) - (953)
At 31 December 2009 RZZTNE
+ZA=1+-H 55,606 46,634 3424 1,747 107,411
Accumulated depreciation: ZiE
At 1 January 2008 RZZZ\E—R— 7425 25211 2,113 1,202 35,951
Reclassified from prepaid land BRLREER
lease payments (Note 18) »R(liz18) 181 - - - 181
Other reclassification HsHsE 16 (16) - - -
Charge for the year Epgy 1521 3,800 298 113 5,732
Written back on disposal HEEM - - (230) - (230)
At 31 December 2008 RZZENE
+ZA=1+-H 9,143 28995 2,181 1,315 41,634
Charge for the year FREH 748 3,888 357 9% 6,088
Written back on disposal HEED - - (861) - 861)
At 31 December 2009 RoETHE
+-A=1+-H 10,891 32,883 1,677 1,410 46,861
Carrying amount; FHE:
At 31 December 2009 R-ETNE
+ZA=1+-H 44715 13,751 1,747 337 60,550
At 31 December 2008 RZZT\F
+-A=1+-H 41,063 16,823 1,655 376 59,917

The buildings of the Group and the Company are situated
on parcels of land in the PRC in which the Group and the

Company held medium-term land use rights (Note 18).

AEBERRRREFURFE 23 L
AEERARRFA BRI 2 HH 1
ER(MEE18) -

ENEEEREACEXROERAHE 81
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18. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 18. FEfHEE
The Group and
the Company
AEERERAT
RMB'000
AREETTT
Cost: AN
At 1 January 2008 RZEENF—H—H 5,431
Reclassified to buildings (Note 17) EOBEEFHE17) (1,900)
At 31 December 2008 RZZEENF+=A=1+—H 3,631
Additions BN -
At 31 December 2009 R-EZhE+-_HA=+—H 3,631
Accumulated amortisation: ST
At 1 January 2008 RZZEZTN\F—H—H 1,011
Charge for the year (Note 10) FNZIH(HTEE10) 103
Reclassified to buildings (Note 17) B EEEF(HF17) (181)
At 31 December 2008 R N\F+_A=+—H 933
Charge for the year (Note 9) FNZIHHTEE9) 125
At 31 December 2009 RZZEZNF+-_A=+—H 1,058
Carrying amount: BRMEE
At 31 December 2009 RZEENF+_A=+—H 2,473
At 31 December 2008 R N\F+_A=+—H 2,598
2009 2008
—EThEF —EENF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T
Carrying amount at 31 December R+-—A=+—HEEE 2,473 2,598
Portion classified as current assets DEEREEEZ D (125) (102)
Portion classified as non-current assets DEERIEREEE D 2,348 2,496

82

The above medium-term land use rights are located in the

PRC.
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19. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 19. HEEIRE
The Group and the Company
AEERADT
2009 2008
—EEAEF ZEEN\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETT
At 1 January n—A—H 14,830 7,880
Additions hiehriS 17,343 21,604
Transfer to property, EREYE - RENERE
plant and equipment (Note 17) (K15%17) (5,774) (14,654)
At 31 December R+—A=+—H 26,399 14,830
20. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES 20. RAHBARNKRE
The Company
KATF
2009 2008
—EENF ZETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFTT
Unlisted investment, at cost FELETHIRE - RAANE 5,500 5,500
Amount due from a subsidiary i S)EENS e 3,365 3,366
8,865 8,866

EHERE R L EERAERAR
TETAFEH

—==
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20.

84

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2009

were as follows:—

Country of incorporation
and operation and

20.

RIE QBT HRE (K)
R-ZBTAE+-A=+—8 KHBEAF
BT —

Percentage of
ordinary shares

Name of companies legal entity status held directly  Principal activity
BEEER
AL R EEROH
NEHRE RENBERKEEBRUY Bokk FEEK
Changlong Bio-Pharmacy Hong Kong, 100%  Dormant
(Hong Kong) Company Limited limited liability company
RELEX(BE)GRAF &% BREMERT] TEEH
Jilin Province Huinan Changlong The PRC, 100%  Trading of
Pharmacy Trading Company limited liability company biochemical medicine
Limited
EME B R AR M FE - BREELRF] BEEE(CER
BREMERA]
Jilin Province Medicinal Plants The PRC, 100%  Dormant
Trading Company Limited limited liability company
EMEN T EREDLE FE - AREEARF] EE LT

BRAE

The amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured, interest-
free and in substance represents the Company’s
investment in the subsidiary in the form of quasi-equity
loan. The directors consider that the carrying amount of
the balance approximate its fair value.

The amounts due to subsidiaries classified as current
liabilities in the Company’s balance sheet are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

21. EBREE

The Group and the Company REBRARQT
Purchased
Purchased in-process
know- research and
how and development
prescription assets Total
BARMNR EBETH
-y MREE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETIT ARBTT AR®ETT
Cost: A
At 1 January 2008 RZEEN\F—HA—H 48,905 - 48,905
Additions R 11,430 9,800 21,230
At 31 December 2008 RZEENF+ A
=+—H 60,335 9,800 70,135
Additions 18R 550 1,300 1,850
At 31 December 2009 RZEENF+=A
=+—H 60,885 11,100 71,985
Accumulated amortisation and i8R REEE :
impairment loss:
At 1 January 2008 RZZEZN\F—H—H 21,777 - 21,777
Amortisation charge (Note 9) BIES I (H7579) 7,529 - 7,529
At 31 December 2008 RZEEN\F+A
=+—H 29,306 - 29,306
Amortisation charge (Note 9) BEHST H (H7519) 8,099 - 8,099
Impairment charge (Note 9) BB (A7579) 1,230 - 1,230
At 31 December 2009 RZEZNF+=A
=+—H 38,635 - 38,635
Carrying amount: BRMEE :
At 31 December 2009 RZEZNF+=A
=+—H 22,250 11,100 33,350
At 31 December 2008 RZZEZNF+=A
=+—H 31,029 9,800 40,829

Purchased know-how and prescription were done
through research and development cooperation with an

independent third party and were all acquired by cash from

independent third parties.

During the year, the Directors reviewed the carrying
amount of the purchased know-how and prescription
based on the future economic benefits generated from
these assets. An impairment loss of RMB1,230,000 was

recognised for the current year (2008: Nil).

%Mﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬂ:ﬁ%gg Eé?ﬁ 85

FE®R

FR - BEERBEZSEERREEZ
FIESB T AT AT R B 5 2 BREE A
EEE1E A AR 1,230,000
TT(ZZENF  |E) -
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21.

22,

86

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

The Group and the Company (continued)

During the year, the Group had purchased in-process
research and development assets of RMB1,300,000
(2008: RMB9,800,000) from independent third parties and
their payments were settled against the prepayments.
Purchased in-process research and development
assets represent costs incurred by third parties for
the development of new products, including clinical
experiments and tests conducted. Due to the inherent
uncertainties associated with these in-process research and
development projects, the associated expenditure incurred
is particularly at risk of impairment if the successful
eventual commercialisation of the projects becomes
doubtful. The Directors have reviewed the carrying amount
of these in-process research and development assets and
consider that there are no indications of impairment as at
31 December 2009 and 2008.

DEPOSIT FOR ACQUISITION OF LAND USE
RIGHTS

In the year 2008, the Company entered into a land
purchase agreement with an independent third party
to purchase a parcel of land which is situated at the
Economic Development Zone in Huinan, Jilin Province,
the PRC, at a consideration of RMB11,372,000. As at
31 December 2008, the Company had paid a deposit of
RMB10,000,000. The remaining balance of RMB1,372,000
was expected to be settled upon the completion of the
registration process to transfer the title of the land to
the Company. The Directors have reviewed the carrying
amount of the deposit and consider that these is no
indication of impairment as at 31 December 2009.

As disclosed in Note 33 to the financial statements, the
above unpaid balance is included as a capital commitment
of the Group and the Company.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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23. INVENTORIES 23. ®E
The Group and the Company
AEBRAAT
2009 2008
—EENE ZEFENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREEFTT
Raw materials R 9,001 11,329
Work in progress TERE 6,709 4,425
Finished goods Bk 11,368 9,570
27,078 25,324
Less: Provision for obsolete and B BERFIETERE
slow-moving inventories (6,349) (6,349)
20,729 18,975
During the year, there was no written off obsolete and FA - BENEEZERBHEFE(ZEE
slow-moving inventories (2008: RMB12,335,000). J\F - AR¥512,335,0007T) ©

EHENMRRECEXBRAERAT g7
TETAFEH
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24. TRADE RECEIVABLES 24, EWESZERR
The Group The Company
EE AT
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EBERE —TTN\F ZEBEBhE —TITN\F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSI ARETT AR%®TR ARETT
Trade receivables FEYE 5 BRI 94,959 80,232 106,695 92,037
Less: Provision for impairment S EERE (13,717) (12,774) (11,736) (11,035)
Trade receivables — net FEUE 5 BRI
— 81,242 67,458 94,959 81,002
(i) The Group's policy is to allow an average credit (i) AEBRRAGTESEPTH
period of 180 days to its trade customers. 180H Z BRERHEA o
(ii) The movement in the provision for impairment (ii) FRARBRERENEY(DER
for doubtful debts during the vyear, including both EREBEES)IT -
specific and collective loss components, is as
follows:
The Group The Company
PN L] KAH
2009 2008 2009 2008
“EENE —TETN\F ZBELGE —ZTTN\F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®Tr ARETT AR%¥TR ARETT
At 1 January m—HBA—H 12,774 11,280 11,035 9,263
Additional provision N
(Note 9) (Hzt9) 943 1,494 701 1,772
At 31 December Pt+ZA=+—H 13,717 12,774 11,736 11,035
Provision for doubtful debts had been made for REBEDREEEY 2 Azt Al B £
the estimated irrecoverable amounts arising from BEH - EZE 2B RAHRERETE
the sale of goods. The provision was determined PAEESE -
by the directors with reference to past default
experience.

88 Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 24, FEWREZERNR(E)
(i) ~ The ageing analysis of trade receivables, based on (iii) BIEEZEH A RNRERE S8R
the invoice date and net of provision for impairment ERE - ERE SREFNIRR D
of trade receivables, is as follows: W
The Group The Company
PN b NS
2009 2008 2009 2008
“EBENE —_TTN\F BTG —TTN\F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSI ARETT AR®TR ARETT
Current BIHA 30,947 28,952 33,161 30,755
31-90 days 31-90H 13,081 10,524 15,847 14,835
91-180 days 91-180H 15,025 15,880 21,645 20,096
More than 180 days HB:®180H 22,189 12,102 24,306 15,316
81,242 67,458 94,959 81,002
(ivi  The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are (iv)  WEERIs R IEREN K E
neither individually nor collectively considered to be ZEFERR ST -
impaired is as follows:
The Group The Company
EE AT
2009 2008 2009 2008
—EENE —TTN\F ZEBEBIE —FTINF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®Tr ARETT AR%®TR ARETT
Neither past due nor I s B sRI(E 59,053 49,873 70,653 65,685
impaired
Less than 1 month past due #EDH—EA 4,049 3,680 8,430 5,176
1 to 3 months past due BH—=={EA 4,959 4,385 5,000 3,074
Over 3 months past due B ERRR = {E A 4,390 3,883 4,622 2,836
72,451 61,721 88,705 76,771

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor
impaired relate to a wide range of customers for
whom there was no recent history of default.

Trade receivables that were past due but not
impaired relate to a number of independent
customers that have a good track record with the
Group. Based on past experience, management
believes that no impairment is necessary in
respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

BESHIRENRKE SRRERZ A
ORGSR EPAR -

BMERERENERESRRES ZEL
EFAR  RERFPHAEENEERLE
Rif - REBELSR EHERR - %F
‘EHBARE  RASEEERIEEX
2F - BAERDRGEE 28E - K&
B EL A F RS A R

SHERMERECERRAERAT  gQ
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24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 24,
(V) Included in trade receivables of the Company

25.

90

was a balance of RMB25,774,000 (2008:
RMB24,762,000) due from a subsidiary as at 31
December 2009.

(vi) The Directors consider the carrying amount of
trade receivables approximates their fair value.

OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 25.
PREPAYMENTS

BWE SRR (&)

(v) RAGIEKE ZERANBIEN =
TANF+—A=+—AEKHBER
A2 e AR M25,774,000T( =
T )\F : AREE24,762,0007T) °

i) EERS BURESRFRZEEE
EENFERS

Hitp B R ~ ST& RENFR

The Group The Company
A%E AT

2009 2008 2009 2008
—EERE —TTN\F ZEBEBhE —FTIN\F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥TRT ARETT ARBTRT ARBTT
Advances to staff REENE-EN 14,681 26,101 14,681 26,101
Bills receivables PR E & 6,421 6,227 6,329 6,004
Other receivables H {th fE Y TRTE 2,146 2,595 2,146 2,595
Deposits and prepayments 218 RIENFIA 3,415 11 3,404 -
26,663 34,934 26,560 34,700

At 31 December 2009 and 2008, certain of the Group's
and the Company’'s advances to staff and other
receivables were determined to be impaired. The impaired
receivables related to staff and debtors that were in
financial difficulties and management assessed that only
a portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered.
Consequently, the following provisions for doubtful debts
have been made.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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25. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 25, HMtEWHE T2 RENSNRE

PREPAYMENTS (continued) (&)
The Group and The Group and the
the Company Company
Advanced to staff Other receivables
AEBERERR AEBERART
68 T8 HthfE i =R
2009 2008 2009 2008

—22RE “TT/\F —BBRE “TT)\F
RMB’000 RMB’'000  RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT ARMTR ARMTR

Gross amounts 1azE 17,008 28,428 2,575 3,024

Less: Provision for impairment OB R (2,327 (2,327) (429) (429)
Net amounts SRR 14,681 26,101 2,146 2,595

The Group and the Company do not hold any collateral N8 B R AR B 0 A AL S A R A A MA]
over the above balances. The movement in the provisions T o FRME TEF R HE MR RIE
for impairment of advances to staff and other receivables WERENEE (BERTE REEBEERL
during the year, including both specific and collective loss ST

components, is as follows:

The Group and the Company

FEERADT
2009 2008
—BENE —TT)N\HF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARETIT

At 1 January m—H—H 2,756 2,701
Additional provision N - 55
At 31 December A+-—A=+—8 2,756 2,756

EHERMREECERBRAARAT O
TETAFER
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26.

27.

92

LOANS RECEIVABLES

The Group and the Company

(i) Loans of aggregate sum of RMB13,000,000 (2008:
RMB3,000,000) due from an independent third
party is unsecured, bears interest of 10% per
annum (2008: 8% per annum) and, following its
renewal, shall be repaid within the next twelve
months.

(i) Loans of aggregate sum of RMB5,150,000
(2008: Nil) due from an independent third party is
unsecured, bears interest of 10% per annum (2008:
Nil) and, following its renewal, shall be repaid
within the next twelve months.

The above loans receivables were neither past due nor
impaired as at 31 December 2009 and 2008. The Directors
consider the carrying amount of these loans approximates
their fair value.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances comprise cash held by the
Group and the Company and short-term bank deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less. The
directors consider the carrying amount of these assets
approximates their fair value.

As at 31 December 2009, the Group's cash and
bank balances denominated in RMB amounted to
RMB43,453,000 (2008: RMB48,793,000). The RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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(ii) BUWBIFE = TNEZREBAR
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RAE BWEERZEOESAE A FERM
go

ReRkBESEEY

R RRTBEFEEAEERARRRFHE
RERRIPAR=(EAS AT 2 EHR
TER-BEE2RA MEEEZREESR
HAHERS -

NR-BTEAE+-_A=1+—0 K&£H
NMARBEZRERBITEHAAR
# 43,453,000 (ZEEN\F : AR
48,793,0007T) - ARBTEEERALRA
HE® - A - RIERBIKREZ SNEE
BIRTE - HIEEERMNESERTE &A%
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R R B

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UANREZTR)
28. TRADE PAYABLES 28. EFEZERR
The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on the T AEREZEHHNEMNEZRKMER
invoice date, is as follows: BT -
The Group and the Company
AEERAQT
2009 2008
—EENF —ZETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETFT
Current BNEA 783 2,044
31-90 days 31-90H 720 2,380
Over 90 days HBiE90H 5,205 7,651
6,708 12,075
The average credit period from the Group's and the REERARRE SHEEANZ TFHEEER
Company's trade creditors is 90 to 180 days. A90HZE180H °
Trade payables principally comprise amounts outstanding ENESRSETEREREEEESE -
for trade purchases. The directors consider the carrying EERBEMNESER ZIRMERLQF
amount of trade payables approximates their fair value. EAEE °
29. BORROWINGS 29. f&&

Loans were obtained from Huinan County Finance Bureau
for the purpose of research and development activities of
the Company. The loans are unsecured and bear interest
at one year term saving interest rate promulgated by The
People’'s Bank of China plus 0.3% per annum. The loans
are repayable by instalments until July 2022 as follows:

BrSMEREREEREARFNHEE
B2 ZEEFAEER  BHEAR
RITAME —FHRENEINOIENEF
MEER - ZEEFARTIIAR =T
“FLARNSHEER

The Group and the Company

AEERALQT
2009 2008
—eBAE TIN5
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BT T ARETFT
Within one year —FR - -
After one year but within two years R—FBEMFA 636 -
After two years but within five years RREREBERFEN 1,906 1,271
After five years RAEFE 4,448 5,719
6,990 6,990
6,990 6,990

SHENMRRECEXBRAERAT Q3
TETAFER
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R R B

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UANRBETR)
30. DEFERRED TAXATION 30. EEBIIE
The movements during the year in the deferred tax FRRELEREGBEOESOT

liabilities are as follows:

The Group and the Company

FEERADT
2009 2008
=51 S— YRS
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARBETT

At 1 January R—H—H 4,531 1,847
(Credited)/charged to profit or PEZAER), Nk

loss (Note 10(a)) (BtE10(8) (3,032) 2,684
At 31 December R+—A=+—H 1,499 4,531
The deferred tax liabilities recognised at the balance sheet REEE BER ZIELET A B [EHE KA nE
date represented deferred tax arising from accelerated TERE ZIEERIA

depreciation allowances.

31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. BAK
2009 2008
—EZhE ZEENF
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
ive | x| e o
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T AREFIT
Domestic shares of RMB0.10 each ~ EREBEARKE
0.107THINE A% 387,750,000 38,775 387,750,000 38,775
H shares of RMBO0.10 each EREEARKE
0.107THIHAX 172,500,000 17,250 172,500,000 17,250
560,250,000 56,025 560,250,000 56,025
32. RESERVES 32. f#fE
The Group rEE
Exchange Reserve EL#EE
The Group's exchange reserve comprises all foreign NEEE L RBEREINEES 2 B FHRE
exchange differences arising from the translation of the HBREEEZFEINEZRE - ZFEBDIR
financial statements of foreign operations. The reserve BHET2() 85 2 AR E ST BURRIE -

is dealt with in accordance with the Group's accounting
policy set out in Note 2(q).
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B RS R R B

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UANREZTR)
32. RESERVES (continued) fiE (&)
The Company VAN
Statutory
surplus Retained
premium reserve profits Total
EE
B EE nES RE &R st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AREBTR AR®BTR AR®T=R
(Note b)
(Biztp)
At 1 January 2008 RZZENF
—H—H 24,955 100,077 176,130
Profit for the year FA A - 14,973 14,973
Appropriation to statutory BREEELES
surplus reserve 2,229 (2,229) -
At 31 December 2008 RZTZNEFE
+ZHA=+—H 27,184 112,821 191,103
Profit for the year FN A - 22,332 22,332
Appropriation to statutory surplus B EEFEAES
reserve 3,181 (3,181) -
At 31 December 2009 RZZTZNF
+=A=+—H 30,365 131,972 213,435
(a)  Share premium (a) KRE

(b)

The Company’s share premium account represents
the premium arising from shares issued at a price
in excess of their par value per share.

Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC
and the Company's articles of association, the
Company and its PRC subsidiaries shall appropriate
10 percent of their annual statutory net profit (after
offsetting any prior years’ losses) to the statutory
surplus reserve account. When the balance of
such reserve reaches 50 percent of these entities’
share capital, any further appropriation is optional.
The statutory surplus reserve can be utilised to
offset prior years' losses or to issue bonus shares.
However, such statutory surplus reserve must be
maintained at a minimum of 25 percent of share
capital after such issuance.

(b)

AARD & ERABBESREE
ZERBETZRNEL ZH(E

EELES
BIEFERRERARRRARE
2 AREREFBENE D0
TFEEEMEEE - BREL10%
MEEETHANEEERTERP
O %A AEeNEREZE R
A Z50% @ ARRA]BITEE
ERE—SBETIE  EAELES
AR YER A A I M S IB sk B T4L
B o AT - AAREBITIREAEATES
A D HERNIR AR 25% ©

EMEEEREACEXROERAHE 95
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UANREZT)

33. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

33.

At the balance sheet date, the Group and the Company
had capital commitments contracted for but not provided

for as follows:—

BAESE

REER  AEERARREFTHERE

BENBAREENT - —

The Group and the Company

AEERAQT
2009 2008
—EZAE 2T NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETFT
Acquisition of intangible assets WERER & E 2,940 4,240

Acquisition of property, plant BAE - S MR
and equipment 181 1,864
Acquisition of land use rights (Note 22) W e R (7 22) 1,372 1,372
4,493 7,476
34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 3. BEALXRS

Related party transactions concerned with numbers
of key management during the year comprised only
remuneration paid to the Executive Directors, and is set

out in Note 14 to the financial statements.
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B RS R R B

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UANREZT)

35.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns
for shareholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure
and shareholder returns that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
judgements to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its
capital structure using a gearing ratio, which is total debts
divided by adjusted capital. Total debts represent total
borrowings. Adjusted capital includes all components of
shareholders’ equity less unrealized reserves.

In order to maintain or adjust the gearing ratio, the Group
may issue new shares, return capital to shareholders, raise
new debt financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

The gearing at 31 December 2009 and 2008 was 3.5%
and 3.9% respectively, calculated as follows:

35.

EXEmER

ErEE

AEEEREAZ T ERBRREAEE
A FHEAR BB I T B B B R R K AR
i EmERBEENREFTAERA
HRE  EERRRAIEDR -

REBRG L EMSERRBERERS
B - A BEHFBER R E B P E R 4F
B E AR RO 4T B S ARFEAR L T BEAR
EYHREEAEBYARERERS D
W XREEEFIRRNECE EARBIE
HAE -

AEENED - ALEL AL R
R AR B - BTSRRI DAAT
AREK - EHREHERTEL RIEEA
o (A E AR R E R A
REFEE -

REFNABREERBILE - ARERE
BITHR - MBRCRREEAR - (EHHOE
BREILEEEARDAE -

RZBZNFRZZEZTN\F2EEAELL
RO R E3.5%K3.9% @ sTELWT ¢

2009 2008
—EZAEF —EE)N\F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®BT T AREEFTT
Total debts B4

Non-current liabilities: IEMEBNEE
— Borrowings — BB 6,990 6,990
Shareholders’ equity f& F 199,957 177,840
Less: Exchange reserve B R (259) (218)
Adjusted capital AR 199,698 177,622
Gearing ratio BEBELX 3.5% 3.9%

EHENMRRECEXBRAERAT g7
TETAFEH
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36.

98

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk management

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks, including credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk,
currency risk, price risk and fair values risk. The Group
does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments
either for hedging or for trading purposes. These risks are
managed by the Group’s financial management policies
and practices as described below to minimise potential
effects on the Group's financial performance.

(a)

(b)

Credit risk

The Group’s principal financial assets are cash
and bank balances, trade and other receivables
and loans receivables. The Group’s credit risk is
primarily attributable to its trade, other and loans
receivables. The Group allows an average credit
period of 180 days to its trade customers. The
amounts presented in the balance sheets are net
of allowance for doubtful receivables. An allowance
for impairment is made where there is an identified
loss event which, based on previous experience, is
evidence of a reduction in the recoverability of the
cash flows.

The Group does not have any significant credit
risk exposure to any single trade counterparty
or any Group of trade counterparties having
similar characteristics. It has policies in place to
ensure that sales are made to customers with an
appropriate credit history.

The carrying amount of the trade and other
receivables, loans receivables and cash and bank
balances included in the consolidated balance
sheet represents the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk in relation to the Group's financial
assets.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management,
including the short term investment of cash
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands, subject to approval
by the Company’'s board of directors when the
borrowings exceed certain predetermined levels of
authority. The Group's policy is to regularly monitor
its liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36.

(continued)

Financial risk management (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)
The following table details the remaining
contractual maturities at the balance sheet date
of the Group's financial liabilities, which are based
on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual
rates, or if floating, based on rates current at the

B EREE(E)
B b B ()

(b)

mEEZmbE ()

TR AEEUHREREER
MR TN AR BRI - TORIRR]
MAFTHRRSRE (BEREOE

R - RBTEFIE -

AIE R4S

BHMMEAENNE)UARAE
[ N AN AR BRI R S - F AR

balance sheet date) and the earliest date the Group 8.
and the Company can be required to pay.
The Group AEH
Total More than More than
contractual Tyearbut  2yearsbut
Carrying  undiscounted ~ Within 1 year less than less than More than
amount cashflow or on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
HE Rt -k -54% MERE
BEE  REREE REX MER BER BEK
RMB'000 RVB'000 RVB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARETR ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
2009 “EENE
Trade payables EREHEHN 6,708 6,708 6,708 - - -
Other payables Eferz0E 56,069 56,069 56,069 - - -
Other tax payables EtERTE 8200 8200 8,200 - - -
Dividend payable RS 345 345 345 - - -
Borrowings &8 6,990 8,781 256 891 2534 5,100
78312 80,103 71578 891 2,534 5,100
Total More than More than
contractual 1 year but 2 years but
Canrying  undiscounted ~ Within 1 year less than less than More than
amount cashflow  or ondemand 2 years b years b years
STORAR e —E§E MEGEE
REE  Renas BER MER RER Giliz1
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTE  ARETR  ARBTR  ARETT  ARETR ARETR
2008 “EEN\E
Trade payables ERE A% 12,075 12,075 12,075 - - -
Other payables EfpEfiza 46,985 46,985 46,985 - - -
Other tax payables EtERTE 13,239 13,239 13,239 - - -
Dividend payable RS 360 360 360 - - -
Borrowings A5 6,990 8,59 178 178 1,789 6,449
79,649 81,253 72831 178 1,789 6,449
%M%ﬁﬁﬁﬁimﬁ%%gﬁgéa 99
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. B¥EMER(E)
(continued)
Financial risk management (continued) R EREE ()
(b)  Liquidity risk (continued) (b) FEBEZERE)
The Company AL
Total More than More than
contractual Tyearbut  2yearsbut
Carrying  undiscounted  Within 1 year less than less than More than
amount cashflow or on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
HE Rt ] - E MERE
BEE  RER4E REX MER BER BEH
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEMTL  ARMTR ARMTn  ARETR ARETn  AR%Tn
2009 ZERNE
Trade payables ERESER 6,708 6,708 6,708 = - =
Other payables EfENTIE 55,736 55,736 55,736 - - -
Amounts due to subsidaries  ERHBAFEE 5,000 5,000 5,000 - - -
Other tax payables EtbEMTE 7,707 7,707 7,107 - - =
Dividend payable MRS 345 345 345 - - -
Borrowings &8 6,990 8,781 256 891 2,534 5,100
82,486 84,211 75,752 891 2,534 5,100
Total More than More than
contractual 1 year but 2 years but
Canying  undiscounted ~ Within 1 year less than less than More than
amount cashflow  or ondemand 2 years byears 5years
SRR —ERE £z MEEE
FEE  RenuE FER AER TER Gik=,
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTE  ARETR  ARETR  ARETT  ARETR ARETR
2008 “EEN\E
Trade payables EREZEN 12,075 12,075 12,075 - - -
Other payables EferzE 16,967 16,967 16,967 - - -
Amounts due to subsidlaries ERHBARZE 5,500 5,500 5,500 - - -
Qther tax payables HitENHE 12,732 12,732 12,732 - - -
Dividend payable S 360 360 360 - - -
Borrowings & 6,99 8,594 178 178 1789 6,449
84,624 86,228 71812 178 1789 6,449
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36.
(continued)
(c) Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily
from its borrowings from Huinan County Finance
Bureau. Borrowings at variable rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The Group's
interest rate profile as monitored by management is

set out below:

f IR E I ()

(c) FIRER
REE RN R T 2R EERE %
MERBNEE - WFBFEIELD
fERLAEEmAR S REN KR
B o REIEEEE M AR SR B A RS
SEHIT

The Group and the Company

AEERAANT
2009 2008
b= K3 —EENE

Effective Effective

interest rate interest rate

ERA= B
% RMB'000 % RMB'000
IN S ARETT

Variable rate borrowings FEEE

Borrowings g 3.66% 6,990 2.55% 6,990

The interest rate and terms of repayment of
the Group’s and the Company's borrowings are
disclosed in Note 29 to the financial statements.

At 31 December 2009, it was estimated that a
general increase or decrease of 100 basis points in
interest rates, with all other variables held constant,
would decrease or increase the Group's profit after
taxation and retained profits by RMB69,900 (2008:
RMB69,900).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the balance sheet date and had been
applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for
the borrowings in existence at that date. The
100 basis point increase or decrease represents
management’'s assessment of a reasonably
possible change in interest rates over the period
until the next annual balance sheet date.

REBRARNBNEEFE RERERI
SRR FE20 5 -

RZBFAF+ZA=+—R  BREM
BYTE - WEEFE LA TRE1001E
HR - A E BN BB RN R IR
i RE DRI R #69,9007T (—FF
N\ - AR#69,9007T) °

EREEE ST HBRAEEREEAE
MR - BEHARKANEEFEAR
BT - EASTRIOEERAERE
HEE TR A LRI A 4
A BEBIE -

EHERMRRECERBRAARET 10
TETAFEH

—==



Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ¥R R B
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36.
(continued)
(d)  Currency risk
The Group mainly operated in the PRC with most
of the transactions settled in Renminbi and did not
have significant exposure to risk resulting from
changes in foreign currency exchange rates.

(e)  Pricerisk
The Group is not exposed to any equity price risk
or commodity price risk.

(f) Fair values
All financial assets and liabilities are carried at
amounts not materially different from their fair
values as at 31 December 2009 and 2008.

37. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 37.
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets and
financial liabilities as recognised at 31 December 2009 and
2008 may be categorised as follows:

f IR E I ()

(d) E¥ERE
AEEEEAREELET - AR
SRFIAARBEE « HEHE RS
HEESBTELNEARR -

(e) fEEEMRE
RS E R SRR ERER
KEmERERR -

(f) ATE
RZZENFRZFZNF A
=+—H FEMBEEREEDN
RS EENTELSEERE
g °

MEEERMBEEBRERNES

M E

REERZZEZNFRZZTTNF+=A

=+ HFERNMBEEMYFEER

BREMERIE T X Pt T A48

2009 2008
—EENF —BTNF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETTT

Financial assets B EE
Loans and receivables (including cash ~ B REWFIB(BIERE &
and bank balances) RITHERR) 169,545 154,223
Financial liabilities MKasE
Financial liabilities measured at B E TR R ATE
amortised cost 78,312 79,649
38. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 38 Hi{tEHmE

STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2010.
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Five Year Financial Summary

HFMBRE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UARREZET)

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from
the published audited financial statements and with the
reclassification of expenses as explained in Note 39 to the
financial statements, is set out below.

Operating Results

AEEHFAETREECM BRI ZEEDME
MRFEZFE  BEERBBERZUARMBRE
BYRESQRTI 2 Fxe 2 EXTERIEH AT o

R E S

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=+-HLHFE

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
—EENE —TT)N\F —TTLF —TTRF —TTHF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR AR%®TRT AREBTT ARETE ARETR
Turnover L] 152,766 127,124 97,284 69,522 81,889
Cost of sales SHERAR (39,352) (38,819) (29,658) (27,821) (27,280)
Gross profit EF 113,414 88,305 67,626 41,701 54,609
Other income and net gains = NS e
or losses Jagisbe s 7,059 428 2,258 1,676 7,429
Distribution and selling costs DM IEERY (77,684) (47,711) (38,426) (28,238) (37,521)
Administrative expenses TR Y (20,518) (15,524) (11,922) (9,197) (11,810)
Other operating expenses H & &2 - - - 611) (311)
Profit from operations SRR 22,271 25,498 19,636 5,331 12,396
Finance costs BRE AR (273) (248) (107) (323) (397)
Profit before income tax FADRA 21,998 25,250 19,429 5,008 11,999
Income tax (credit)/expense BIE(ER),Fx 78 (10,261) (7,051) (1,971) (3,982)
Profit for the year attributable to FARRBEEA
owners of the Company FE(E %A 22,076 14,989 12,378 3,037 8,017
Assets and Liabilities BEERAE
As at 31 December
W+=A=1+—-H
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
ZEENE —TT)\F —TTtHF —TTRF —TTRF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREBTRT AREBTT ARETE ARETR
Bearer biological assets TRBEMEE 2,169 1,390 1,175 656 464
Property, plant and equipment ME - R NMERE 60,554 59,922 46,777 49,657 51,128
Prepared lease payments SEANEikn 2,348 2,496 4,285 4,295 3,596
Construction in progress FEEZIR 26,399 14,830 7,880 5,124 3,971
Intangible assets mEE 33,350 40,829 27,128 32,650 31,016
Deposit for acquisition of WHE LS
land use rights 10,000 10,000 - - -
Current assets TRENVEE 200,973 188,578 181,387 156,547 174,922
Current liabilities MEAE (71,322) (72,659) (41,382) (42,649) (54,851)
Non-current liabilities IERBAE (8,489) (11,521) (8,371) - -
Net assets BEFE 255,982 233,865 218,879 206,280 210,246
Share capital R 56,025 56,025 56,025 56,025 56,025
Reserves i 199,957 177,840 162,854 150,255 154,221
Total equity 1A 255,982 233,865 218,879 206,280 210,246
%M‘é?ﬁﬁﬁﬁikﬁ%@i@ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂ 103
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

BRERBFAEES

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the annual general meeting
of Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company
Limited ("the Company”) for the year ended 31 December 2009
(the "AGM") will be held at 31 Beishan Street, Chaoyang Town,
Huinan County, Tonghua, Jilin Province, the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC") on Monday, 28 June 2010 at 10:00 a.m. for the
following purposes:

As ordinary resolution:

104

to receive and consider the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company and the reports of the
Directors of the Company and the independent auditor’s
report of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2009

to consider and approve the report of the Supervisory
Committee of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2009;

to consider and approve the appropriation to statutory
surplus reserve for the year ended 31 December 2009;

to consider the reappointment of Reanda Lau & Au Yeung
(HK) CPA Limited as auditors of the Company for the year
ending 31 December 2010 and authorize the Directors to
fix their remuneration;

to consider and approve the remuneration proposals for
Directors and supervisors of the Company for the year
ending 31 December 2010;

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
Annual Report 2009

BEEEMEEERELLCEZERNERAR
(TRRBDETR-_Z-ZFRA-TN\BEH
—EFTEEREPEARKMBE([HE]) FH
ABRICTERESABEILLLES RETEEC
ZEENF+A=T-HIEFENRRBFRE
(BEFXE ) » #ARIETHIEE

REBRER -

AEREZEBEARABE_ZTTNF+ A

=t BLEFEENERZEAMBERE
AARNEEGWE B ZEENRE -

—

2. EREMEARFBE_ZTTNF+ A
=t HIEFENEFEEREE

3. EZREBAERBE_TEAF T A
=T -RUEFERRESTEEAES

4. EREMZENLERERG (BE) 2t
EBMABRRARRERRBE_ZT—ZF
ToA=ZT—BLEEENRBEIREESE
EZEETEME

5. ERAMEHE"T-—TF+_A=1—
HIEFEARRRESEREENHIMES



Notice of Annual General Meeting

BRERBFAEES

6. to consider and if the right fit, pass with or without 6.
modifications, the following resolution as a special
resolution:

“THAT:

(a) subject to paragraphs (c), (d) and (e) below, the
exercise by the Board of Directors of the Company
(the "Board”) during the Relevant Period (as
defined in paragraph (f) below) of all the powers of
the Company separately or concurrently to allot,
issue and deal with domestic shares of nominal
value of RMBO0.10 each in the share capital of
the Company (the “Domestic Shares”) and/or
overseas-listed foreign shares of nominal value of
RMBO0.10 each in the share capital of the Company
(the “H Shares”) be and is hereby approved;

(b) the approval in paragraph (a) above shall authorise
the Board to make an offer or agreement or grant
an option during the Relevant Period which would
or might require Domestic Shares and/or H Shares
to be allotted and issued either during or after the
end of the Relevant Period;

(c) the aggregate nominal value of Domestic Shares
to be allotted and issued or agreed to be allotted
and issued (whether pursuant to an option or
otherwise) by the Board pursuant to the approval
in paragraphs (a) and (b) above, otherwise
than pursuant to (i) a rights issue (as defined
in paragraph (f) below); (ii) the exercise of the
conversion rights under the terms of any securities
which are convertible into such shares; (iii) the
exercise of rights of subscription under the terms
of any warrants issued by the Company; or (iv) any
scrip dividend or similar arrangement providing for
the allotment of such shares in lieu of the whole
or part of a dividend on such shares in accordance
with the articles of association of the Company,
shall not exceed 20 per cent. of the aggregate
nominal value of the Domestic Shares then in issue
at the date of the passing of this resolution;
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the aggregate nominal value of H Shares to
be allotted and issued or agreed to be allotted
and issued (whether pursuant to an option or
otherwise) by the Board pursuant to the approval
in paragraphs (a) and (b) above, otherwise
than pursuant to (i) a rights issue (as defined
in paragraph (f) below); (ii) the exercise of the
conversion rights under the terms of any securities
which are convertible into such shares; (iii) the
exercise of rights of subscription under the terms
of any warrants issued by the Company; or (iv) any
scrip dividend or similar arrangement providing for
the allotment of such shares in lieu of the whole
or part of a dividend on such shares in accordance
with the articles of association of the Company,
shall not exceed 20 per cent. of the aggregate
nominal value of the H Shares then in issue at the
date of the passing of this resolution;

the approval in paragraph (a) above shall be
conditional upon the approval of the China
Securities Regulatory Commission being obtained
by the Company;

for the purpose of this special resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the
passing of this special resolution until whichever is
the earlier of:

(i) the conclusion of the next annual general
meeting of the Company following the
passing of this special resolution;

(i) the expiration of a period of 12 months
following the passing of this special
resolution; or

(iii) the date on which the authority set out in
this special resolution is revoked or varied
by a special resolution of the members of
the Company in general meeting.

'I 06 Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
Annual Report 2009
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“Rights issue” means an offer of shares open for
a period fixed by the Directors to holders of shares
of the Company on the register of members of
the Company on a fixed record date and, where
appropriate, the holders of the other equity
securities of the Company entitled to be offered
therein, in proportion to their then holdings of such
shares or other equity securities (subject to such
exclusions or other arrangements as the Directors
may deem necessary or expedient in relation to
fractional entitlements or having regard to any
restrictions or obligations under the laws of any
relevant jurisdiction, or the requirements of any
regulatory body or any stock exchange); and

(9) the Board be and is hereby authorised to make
such amendments to the articles of association
of the Company as it thinks fit so as to increase
the registered share capital and to reflect the new
capital structure of the Company as a result of
the allotment and issue of shares of the Company
pursuant to the approval granted under paragraph (a)
above”,;

7. to transact any other business.

By order of the Board of

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
Zhang Hong

Chairman

Tonghua, Jilin Province,
the PRC, 30 March 2010
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Notes:

108

Any shareholder of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the
meeting mentioned above is entitled to appoint one or more proxies
to attend and vote at the meeting on his or her behalf in accordance
with the articles of association of the Company. A proxy needs not be
a shareholder of the Company.

In order to be valid, a proxy form of holder of H shares and, if such
proxy form is signed by a person under a power of attorney or other
authority on behalf of the appointer, a notarially certified copy of that
power of attorney or authority shall be deposited at the Hong Kong
Registrars Limited on 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen'’s Road
East, Hong Kong (“the Company'’s Shares Registrar”) not less than 24
hours before the time for holding the meeting or 24 hours before the
time appointed for taking the poll.

In order to be valid, a proxy form of holder of Domestic shares and,
if such proxy form is signed by a person under a power of attorney
or other authority on behalf of the appointer, a notarially certified
copy of that power of attorney or authority shall be deposited at the
Registered Address of the Company not less than 24 hours before the
time for holding the meeting or 24 hours before the time appointed
for taking the poll.

Shareholders of the Company or their proxies shall produce
documents of their proof of identity when attending the meeting.

The register of shareholders of the Company will be closed from 27
May 2010 to 28 June 2010 (both days inclusive), during which no
transfer of shares will be registered. As regards holders of H Shares
and in order to ascertain the entitlement to attendance at the above
meeting, all properly completed transfer forms accompanied by the
relevant share certificate must be lodged with the Company's Share
Registrar not later than 26 May 2010 at 4:00 p.m. for registration.

Shareholders of the Company who intend to attend the AGM have
to notify in writing of their attendance by sending such notice to the
Company by hand, post or fax not later than 7 June 2010.

The purpose of having resolution number 6 it to grant a general power
to the board of directors to allot and issue new shares subject to
applicable laws, regulations and rules.

The AGM is expected to last for half a day. Shareholders and their
proxies attending the AGM are responsible for their own transportation
and accommodation expenses.

Registered Address of the Company and the contact details of the
Company are as follows:

31 Beishan Street, Chaoyang Town, Huinan County,
Tonghua, Jilin Province, the PRC
Fax no: 86(435) 8212738

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
Annual Report 2009
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